# **Dolphin Mobile Client User's Guide**

Version 8 November 2021 Patterson Dental Holdings, Inc. *dba* Dolphin Imaging and Management Solutions 9200 Oakdale Avenue, Suite 500 Chatsworth, CA 91311 USA

Toll Free: 800.548.7241 Office: +1.818.435.1368 Fax: +1.818.435.1369

© 2021 Patterson Dental Holdings, Inc. All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system, or translated into any language, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without prior written permission from Patterson Dental Holdings, Inc.

The information furnished herein is believed to be accurate and reliable. However, no responsibility is assumed by Patterson Dental Holdings, Inc. for its use, nor for any infringements of patents or other rights of third parties resulting from its use. The operations of the program are subject to change without notice.

Dolphin is a trademark of Patterson Dental Holdings, Inc. Microsoft, MS, MS-DOS, Windows, Microsoft Word, and the Windows logo are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. Adobe, Acrobat, and Acrobat Reader are registered trademarks of Adobe Systems, Inc.

All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

# **Table of Contents**

| Welcome1   |
|--|
| Requirements1                                    |
| Features in Dolphin Mobile1                      |
| What's New in Dolphin Mobile?                    |
| Version 8.0                                      |
| Care Call Enhancements3                          |
| New Application Settings4                        |
| Grid Lines4                                      |
| Image Layouts5                                   |
| Location Security and Employee Roles5            |
| Message Center5                                  |
| Patient GPS6                                     |
| Schedule6  |
| Super Questionnaire6                             |
| Version 7.06                                     |
| Search and Schedule Appointments7                |
| Light Bar7                                       |
| Improved Patient Sign-In8                        |
| Improved Performance9                            |
| Virtual Braces (iPhone X with TrueDepth Camera)9 |
| Version 6.09                                     |
| Patient Comments11                               |
| Patient Sign-in11                                |
| Image Capture11                                  |
| Multi-Specialty Support11                        |
| Enhanced Doctor Profiles12                       |
| Version 5.012                                    |
| Version 4.517                                    |
| Getting Started                                  |
| Single Dolphin Server                            |
| Multiple Dolphin Servers                         |
| Adding, Deleting and Editing Servers20           |
| Adding a Server after Logging in                 |
| Passwords and Passcodes                          |
| Updating Your Passcode24                         |

| Changing Your Password                                | 24 |
|---|----|
| Fingerprint Login                                     | 25 |
| Enabling or Disabling Biometrics                      | 25 |
| Menu Overview   | 26 |
| Home  | 26 |
| Main Menu   | 27 |
| Settings Menu   | 27 |
| Using Dolphin Mobile if You Have Dolphin Imaging Only | 29 |
| View Patient Information                              | 29 |
| View Billing Party Information                        | 33 |
| Treatment Card  | 34 |
| Using Questionnaire                                   | 37 |
| View Patient Imaging Data                             | 40 |
| Superimpose Patient Images                            | 42 |
| Share Image Layouts                                   | 43 |
| View Ceph Tracing and Measurements                    | 44 |
| Using Dolphin Mobile if You Have Dolphin Management   | 46 |
| Set up and Use Patient Sign-in                        | 46 |
| View Patient Information                              | 48 |
| Treatment Card  | 53 |
| Comments  | 56 |
| Professionals and Referrals                           | 57 |
| Documents   | 58 |
| Share Documents                                       | 59 |
| Sign Documents  | 60 |
| View Doctor Information                               | 62 |
| View Billing Party Information                        | 64 |
| Search and Schedule an Appointment                    | 65 |
| Navigate the Schedule                                 | 68 |
| SMS Messaging Center                                  | 70 |
| Light Bar   |    |
| Patient GPS   | 74 |
|   | 75 |
| Using Questionnaire                                   |    |
| Using Treatment Card Image Capture                    | 81 |
| Capture Signature                                     | 82 |
| Call, Text, Email, or Capture an Image of an Entity   | 85 |
| Call a Patient, Doctor or Billing Party               | 85 |
| Text a Patient, Doctor or Billing Party               | 85 |
| Send Email  | 85 |
| Capture Patient Images                                |    |
| Modity Patient Images                                 | 87 |
| Capture Entity Images                                 | 88 |

| Using Dolphin Mobile with Dolphin Aquarium | 89  |
|--|-----|
| Virtual Braces                             | 95  |
| Customizing                                | 98  |
| Reorganizing the Home Menu                 | 98  |
| Dolphin Mobile Settings Menu               | 98  |
| Dolphin Management Treatment Card Settings | 100 |

iv

# Welcome

Congratulations on your decision to purchase the Dolphin Mobile client (Dolphin Mobile), which enables you to access your Dolphin database from a mobile device running Android or IOS. Dolphin Mobile provides a subset of Dolphin Management and Dolphin Imaging features and a subset of Dolphin Aquarium features. The majority of these features are read-only, however the we are continually enhancing the product to enable updating the database in real-time.

Whether your office is running Dolphin Aquarium, Dolphin Management, Dolphin Imaging, or any combination of the three, Dolphin Mobile connects directly to your server. Imaging and Management users can access and view practice data in real time from anywhere in the world. Management users can search for and schedule patient appointments in real-time. Aquarium-only users can access the Aquarium features described in this guide.

This guide describes how to use Dolphin Mobile on your mobile device.

## **Requirements**

The instructions in this guide assume you have installed the Dolphin Ocean Server and Dolphin Mobile Client as described in the *Dolphin Mobile and Dolphin Ocean Installation Guide for Android and iOS*.

## **Features in Dolphin Mobile**

- You can run Dolphin Mobile in English, or Spanish, French or Portuguese; simply set the Language in the Android or IOS operating system to the language you want to use.
- Access to multiple Dolphin servers
- Ability to search for and schedule patient appointments
- Ability to add or change Dolphin Mobile passcodes
- Ability to send email or, if your device is also a phone, the ability to call anyone in your Dolphin database by tapping their phone number

If you have Dolphin Aquarium only installed:

- Ability to view thumbnails of all media in the Aquarium library
- Ability to filter which thumbnails you see based on diagnoses, treatments, Aquarium library, or any keyword you enter
- Ability to play Aquarium movies and view Aquarium stills on your mobile device
- Ability to play Aquarium playlists

Note: Aquarium-only customers should skip to Using Dolphin Mobile with Dolphin Aquarium.

If you have Dolphin Imaging installed only:

- Access to patient, doctor and billing party information including address, phone numbers, email addresses, relationships, and referrals
- Access to all patient images stored on your Dolphin Imaging server
- Ability to view side-by-side patient images
- Ability to zoom in or out on any image using the pinch function
- Ability to pan a zoomed-in image

If you have Dolphin Management installed:

- Ability to capture images of non-patients and save them to your Dolphin server
- Access to patient, doctor and billing party information including address, phone numbers, email addresses, relationships, referrals, appointment history, balance summaries, treatment card, and documents
- Ability to search and schedule patient appointments, as well as view the schedule
- Ability to view and configure the Light Bar.
- Ability to access, modify, sign, and submit questionnaires
- Ability to view, edit, and close care calls

This Guide is organized as follows:

What's New in Dolphin Mobile?

Getting Started

Using Dolphin Mobile if You Have Dolphin Imaging Only

Using Dolphin Mobile if You Have Dolphin Management

Call, Text, Email, or Capture an Image of an Entity

Using Dolphin Mobile with Dolphin Aquarium

Virtual Braces

**Customizing** 

# What's New in Dolphin Mobile?

The following sections describe what is new in Dolphin Mobile in reverse chronological order.

### Version 8.0

Dolphin Mobile release 8.0 includes the following new features:

#### **Care Call Enhancements**

We improved the Care Calls->Call screen:

- The phone number no longer defaults to the first number in the list, but to the number associated with the scheduled care call.
- The phone number information is now a button that you can tap to see other phone numbers on file for the patient.
- We added the Messaging Center button; simply tap it to open the messaging center using the number shown.



### **New Application Settings**

We have added the following new options to the Dolphin Mobile Settings menu:



#### **Grid Lines**

We have added an alignment aide for capturing patient photos using Dolphin Mobile. For each photo you want to capture, you have the option to choose from no alignments 3x3 Grid, 4x4 Grid, or Golden Ratio Grid, which is shown below.



#### **Image Layouts**

You can now create, save, and print image layouts from Dolphin Imaging in Dolphin Mobile.

From the Patient->Patient Images screen, select the layout you want to view, tap the more button and select **Share Layout Image**.

This option is available for all image layouts except <All Images>.

The Composite (6) layout is shown at right.

A message is displayed while Dolphin Mobile creates a jpg file of the image layout in portrait format. From here, you can save the file, share it with a contact, or print it directly from Dolphin Mobile, if your mobile device is set up for printing.



#### **Location Security and Employee Roles**

Dolphin Mobile now honors the location settings that are enabled in Dolphin Management as well as the application rights associated with the role assigned to each employee.

#### **Message Center**

Providing you have Dolphin Management 10.6 installed, your practice is a subscriber of Premium 2-Way SMS Messaging, you can now access the SMS Messaging Center from Dolphin Mobile. (For Secure Messaging, MyOrthodontist is also required).



From the Main menu, tap Messaging Center, or from any patient, doctor, or billing party screen tap the

to open the Messaging Center, or a screen where you can enter messages to the patient, doctor, or billing party (if you selected the airplane icon).

From the Inbox, tap the to open the Messaging screen, where you can access the Sent, Recent, and any groups you have configured on the SMS Messaging Center in Dolphin Management:

#### **Patient GPS**

Providing you have Dolphin Management 10.6 installed, you can now access Patient GPS features from Dolphin Mobile.

- From the home screen, tap **I** to open the main menu, and then tap **Patient GPS**.
- From the Light Bar screen, tap *(integration of the streen of the streen*

From Patient GPS, swipe the status bar to view a list of patients in each status, see their sign-in time, how long they have been waiting, how many minutes they were early or late, and the time they entered the status.

The Patient GPS updates in real time, and it honors the color settings configured in Dolphin Management.

#### Schedule

You can now swipe up or down on the calendar to change the schedule year. Swipe up to move forward one year, and swipe down to move back one year.

#### **Super Questionnaire**

We added a settings button to the Questionnaire screen:

Tap it to access two new options, which are toggled off by default:

- Exit to Home Page when toggled on, the app returns you to the home page after you finish signing a questionnaire.
- Skip to Unanswered when toggled on, any partially completed questionnaires will load starting with the first unanswered question, so you can quickly get back to where you were previously.

### Version 7.0

Dolphin Mobile release 7.0 includes the following new features:

### **Search and Schedule Appointments**

You can now search for and schedule an appointment using Dolphin Mobile. From the Schedule screen,

tap , which prompts you to select a patient. The Search screen that opens provides the same options available to you in Dolphin Management, via the Search Schedule, Search Options tab:

| Canada  | Dec                           |
|---------|-------------------------------|
| Search  | ву:                           |
| •       | Appt Type O Appt Class        |
| Type:   | ADJUST20                      |
| Locatio | n: Chatsworth ~               |
| Provide | Dr. Dolphin 🗸 🗸               |
| Minute  | s: 20                         |
| Date Ra | inge:                         |
|         | 3 / 17 / 2020 • 4 / 16 / 2020 |
| Us Us   | e Patient Preferred Options   |
| Weekda  | ays:                          |
| SUN     | MON THE WED THU FRI SAT       |
| AM/PN   | f:                            |
|         | A.M. PM.                      |
|         |                               |



Touch **Search** to open a list of appointments, and tap the one you want to schedule. On the next screen, shown above, you can specify whether this is an Emergency appointment, select the treating assistant, if known, and enter a note. The appointment is added to the schedule after you touch **OK**. The Management Calendar on the desktop is refreshed in real-time.

**Note:** The logged-in user must have the Dolphin Management Scheduling rights, Appointment - Override Minutes and Appointments - Create in order to make appointments/and or override the appointment minutes in Dolphin Mobile.

### **Light Bar**

We have added a subset of Dolphin Management Light Bar features to Dolphin Mobile. From the main menu, touch Light Bar. Practices with more than one location will be prompted to choose which location they want to access.

| 😑 Light Bar   | © \$   |
|---|--|
| 1   | 6  |
| Sammy B. [010614]<br>CLEAN<br>18196h 49m   18196h 36m  <br>-18196h 33m          | Stephen W. [160218]<br>DEBANDAPPT   BB<br>48h 51m   1h 48m   -47h<br>58m |
| 2   | 7  |
| Tess M. [010603]<br>INVISALIGN   ND<br>18196h 48m   1h 46m  <br>-18196h 33m     | Madeleine P. [001039]<br>PROG VR<br>18199h 31m   1h 48m  <br>-18198h 33m |
| 3   | 8  |
| Caroline S. [971182]<br>RETCHK   LS<br>18199h 33m   18199h 33m  <br>-18198h 43m | Dina D. [050205]<br>CLEAN   PL<br>18199h 1m   18199h 1m  <br>-18198h 33m |
|   | D  |

Once the Light Bar opens, you can:

- Touch to customize how the Light Bar appears, such as the number of columns (1 or 2), and several of the same options you see on Dolphin Management.
- Touch a colored bar to open the Update screen for the patient associated with that bar.



• Move the patient to a different lighting status by tapping on the new status.

### **Improved Patient Sign-In**

- You can now choose between staff mode or patient mode when setting up patient sign-in on a remote device and/or kiosk in your lobby.
- We removed the button from the Sign-In screen, and we replaced it with an actual QR code your patients can use to sign into the practice.

#### **Improved Performance**

We optimized communication between Dolphin Ocean and Dolphin Mobile for faster response times.

#### Virtual Braces (iPhone X with TrueDepth Camera)

While a patient is in your office, you can use the Virtual Braces feature to show them what the various braces options will look like. iPhone X or higher with a TruthDepth camera users only can see this feature on the main menu.

This tool has several options, enabling you to show the patient a virtual example of what they would look like with ceramic versus metallic braces, different colors of bands; you can customize the virtual teeth by making them wider or narrower to better match the patient's actual teeth. This feature works on iPhone or iPad X and newer devices equipped with a TruthDepth camera only.



### Version 6.0

Dolphin Mobile release 6.0 includes the following new features:

#### **Document Sharing**

You can now share documents and photos with all entities in Dolphin. Simply navigate to the profile of the patient, billing party, or other entity, and tap **Documents**. Tap the plus sign to browse for images, down-

loads, files, etc. from your phone or tablet. Any documents you share are automatically added to the entity's Documents folder in Dolphin Management.

#### **Document Signing**

Office staff as well as patients and billing parties (when they are in your office) can sign documents using Dolphin Mobile.

| ô   | Patient Mode  | DONE  |
|-----|---|-------|
|     | ★ 🖡 🚺 of 1 - +  | »     |
| ſ   |   |       |
| L   | March 14, 2018  | - 1   |
|     | Regarding: Valuatory Translation of Transmett for Califa Alley  | . 1   |
|     | The signed form is introduce to certify that L or period or gravities of Certife Alfreq, report or<br>denoted the interval of orthodoutic application and the termination of constituent. | ·     |
|     | 1 have new presented that transmer has our per here, completed wit that Dr. Delphin reconsents<br>the continuantset of transmer in write to obtain the lawd result.<br>Section            |       |
|     | I herdig official Dr. Delphia from any exposed-billy for all consequences caused by Galille transment large presented against the ultrast of the officialized.                            | ÷ 1   |
|     | and the   | - 1   |
|     | Front's a Coordina's Statuture Date   |       |
|     |   |       |
| L   | Wites Date  |       |
| Ŀ   | da Dağıları Daix  | - 1   |
|     |   | 1     |
|     |   | ×     |
| 100 | $I_{\rm eff}$   |       |
|     |   | Clear |
|     |   |       |
|     |   |       |
| x   |   |       |
| -   | Sign Here   |       |
|     | Patient   |       |

1 From Dolphin Management, add any of the tokens used for signature capture to a document that requires a signature.

 $\checkmark$ 

- 2 Save this document in the patient's Dolphin Document Organizer.
- 3 Open the patient record in Dolphin Mobile, and touch **Documents**.
- 4 When you open a document requiring a signature, the signature icon appears
- 5 Touch the icon to open the signature box.



6 Once you are satisfied with the signature(s), touch the document.

to save the signed copy of the

### **Patient Comments**

You can now add, edit, and delete comments associated with a patient record. From the **Patient** screen tap **Comments**. Any changes you make to patient comments in Dolphin Mobile automatically update in Dolphin Management and vice versa.

### Patient Sign-in

There is a new option on the main menu, Patient Sign-in. Once Dolphin Management is set up to enable this feature, your patients can sign in directly to a mobile device set up in your reception area using patient badge, or by touching their name on a list of today's appointments.

To enable this in Dolphin Management:

- 1 Click Edit-->Practice-->Locations-->Options button-->Sign-in tab.
- 2 Set the Sign-in entry method to Patient List (to show a list of appointments) or Keyboard Only (to have patients key in their names) and use patient badge.

Dolphin Mobile now honors the font sizes configured in Dolphin Management (Edit-->Practice-->Locations-->Options button-->Messages tab).

### Image Capture

Dolphin Imaging users can now use Dolphin Mobile running on their smart phone as an image capture device.

- 1 From Dolphin Mobile, navigate to the patient whose image you want to capture.
- 2 Touch the image icon to open the **Patient Images** screen.
- 3 Touch the camera icon to open the **Capturing** screen.

If no timepoints exist for the selected patient, Dolphin Mobile prompts you to enter and save one. You will then have to touch the camera icon again to open the Capturing screen.

This is described in more detail in "Capture Patient Images" on page 86.

### **Multi-Specialty Support**

Dolphin Mobile now supports Dolphin Management's Specialty module. There are two tabs on the Patient screen for practices using the Specialty module. To view patient information, touch the tab corresponding to the specialty you want to view.

| ORTHO                   |                      | PEDO                  |
|-------------------------|----------------------|-----------------------|
|                         | Active Hyg           | iene                  |
| SO                      | Start date           | 2/20/2018             |
|                         | Est. Compl.<br>Date: | 2/20/2020 (24<br>mos) |
| Samantha (Sam)          | Recall               |                       |
| 2/27/1998<br>21 yrs old | Recall Appt<br>Type  |                       |
| ID : 970992             | _                    |                       |
| Treatment Card          | -                    | •                     |
| Comments                |                      | >                     |
| Professionals and F     | Referrals            | >                     |
| Super Questionnair      | e                    | >                     |
| Aquarium                |                      | >                     |
| Superimpose             |                      | >                     |
| Documents               |                      | >                     |

### **Enhanced Doctor Profiles**

You can get more information on doctors in your database:

- The Doctor Info section now includes information such as his or her practice name, spouse name, and any notes you have added to the Notes section on the Edit a Doctor, Doctor tab in Dolphin Management.
- You can view any history stored for this doctor (Edit a Doctor, History tab).
- You can now access information about this doctor's contacts (Edit a Doctor, Contacts tab).

### Version 5.0

Dolphin Mobile release 5.0 includes the following new features:

#### **Scan Patient Badge**

For your patients using the mobile app, MyOrthodontist, **PATIENT BADGE** feature, you can use the new Scan Badge feature in Dolphin Mobile to scan those patients. Scan Badge, found on the main menu, opens up a QR scanner on the device running Dolphin Mobile. You can then scan the patient badge shown on the patient's mobile device running MyOrthodontist. When office staff open Patient Lookup in Dolphin Management, the scanned patient is displayed; additionally, the patient GPS is updated with that patient's latest status information.

#### **Tooth Chart Views**

You can now view the tooth chart and all of the views (All charted items, Elastics only, Brackets only, etc.)

set up in Dolphin Management. When you open a patient's treatment card, swipe until you see the icon. Tap it to open the tooth chart, and touch the drop-down menu to select the desired view.

#### **More Swipe Functionality**

- When viewing a patient's images, you can now swipe left or right to navigate between timepoints instead of having to tap the Timepoint drop-down menu.
- You can now swipe to switch between months on the Schedule.

#### **New Settings Options and Saved Locations**

The Settings menu includes two new options:

• Show Listed Servers

If you have more than one server available, turning this option on will show a list of available servers when you launch the application. Previously, Dolphin Mobile automatically connected to the server you accessed the last time you used the app. If you want Dolphin Mobile to continue that behavior, simply turn the Show Listed Server option off.

Change Password

You can now change your Dolphin password directly from Dolphin mobile. Additionally, if your password is about to expire when you log in to Dolphin Mobile, you are prompted to update it.

Dolphin Mobile remembers which practice location you select when viewing the schedule; the next time you log in, and open the schedule it opens at that location.

#### **Care Calls**

When you open a care call and tap the telephone icon, you now get a list of patient family members and other professionals (such as doctors, oral surgeons, etc.) associated with the patient.



#### **Ceph Tracing and Measurement Table**

You can now view patient images with ceph tracing. When you see an image with this icon on it, tap on the icon to open the image:



Once you open the image you can zoom in, zoom out, and pan.

Additionally, if the ruler icon appears on the image, you can tap it to open a screen of patient measurements.



**Note:** Dolphin Mobile displays patient images and ceph tracings for convenient reference. However, patient diagnosis and treatment decisions should be made using only the full Dolphin Imaging software on a desktop computer.

#### Superimpose, Pan, and Scale

From the new Patient-->Superimpose menu, you view patient images side-by-side, and select one to superimpose over the other. Use the thumbnails next to the image to select the active image. Then you can pan and scale to position it correctly.



#### **New Aquarium Features**

• Access Aquarium from a Patient

If you have a license for Dolphin Aquarium, you can now access the mobile version directly from the Patient menu in Dolphin Mobile. When you open Aquarium from a patient, you can associate Aquarium media with that patient. Any media you associate with a specific patient in Dolphin Mobile shows up in that patient's Shared Media library on Aquarium desktop and vice versa.

Patient's that have MyOrthodontist running on their mobile device can view Aquarium media you have associated with their record.

The Save button (shown at right, below) appears when you have added media to the patient record. If you attempt to leave the PATIENT tab, Dolphin Mobile prompts you to save the shared media.



• Grid View for Tablet Users

A grid view of Aquarium media thumbnails is now available when running Dolphin Mobile on a tablet.

### Version 4.5

- View side-by-side patient images
- Fingerprint login
- Ability to configure column width in the treatment card
- Remote signature capture

# **Getting Started**

This section describes how to log in to Dolphin Mobile and provides an overview of the Dolphin Mobile menus.

Once Dolphin Mobile is installed and running on your mobile device, logging in varies depending upon whether your device is set up to access one Dolphin server or multiple Dolphin server databases in different locations.

## **Single Dolphin Server**

To log in to one server:

1 Touch the Dolphin Mobile icon on your mobile device.

The screen you see depends upon whether or not you have set up a passcode and whether or not you have a stored fingerprint on your mobile device (for more information, see <u>"Fingerprint Login" on page 25</u>).



Enter your four-digit passcode or your user name and password if you do not have a passcode.
 The Dolphin Mobile home screen opens.

## **Multiple Dolphin Servers**

To log in to Dolphin Mobile when you have access to more than one Dolphin server database:

1 Touch the Dolphin Mobile icon on your mobile device.

The following screen opens:



2 Enter your passcode if you want to log in to the server shown. Otherwise, touch anywhere on the Server name.



Dolphin Mobile prompts you to choose a server:

3 Touch the server you want to use.

If a passcode has been set up for the current user name, on this server, Dolphin Mobile prompts you to enter a passcode. If no passcode has been set up, Dolphin Mobile prompts you for your Dolphin user name and password.

## Adding, Deleting and Editing Servers

To add another server to the server list:

1 From the Choose a Server prompt, touch + Add Server .

The following screen opens:

| Name                      |              |
|---------------------------|--------------|
| Connection Type:          | Cloud Direct |
| Server Address:           | Port:        |
|                           | 8085         |
| Test Cle                  | ar Cache     |
| Activation #: Not Activat | ted          |

2 Complete the information, and activate the server as described in the *Dolphin Ocean Server and Dolphin Mobile Client Installation Guide*.

To delete a server:

- 1 From the list of available servers, touch the 🖍 next to the server you want to delete.
- 2 Select **Delete** from the server information screen that appears.

To edit a server:

1 From the list of available servers touch the next to the server you want to edit.

The following screen opens, and the information about the current server is displayed:

| My Ocean Server         |              |
|-------------------------|--------------|
| Connection Type:        | Cloud Direct |
| Server Address:         | Port:        |
| demo.dolphinimaging.cor | m 8085       |
| Test Cle                | ear Cache    |
| Activation #: 5WY8VRH   | S            |

- 2 To change the server name, server address, and server port, touch the appropriate area and key in the new data on the keypad.
- 3 Touch the Test button to test the server connection.
- 4 Optional: touch the **Clear Cache** button if you have previously viewed images, letters, or Aquarium movie clips, and you want to free up memory card space.

The following message box opens:



- a Touch **OK** to clear the data cache, or touch **Cancel** to leave it as it is.
- 5 Touch OK to save or Cancel to exit the list of servers dialog box without saving.
- 6 Touch outside the Choose a Server box to return to the Login screen.

To log in as a different user:

- 1 From the Login screen, touch the Change button.
- 2 Enter the user name and password for the new user.

- 3 Enter a passcode for this user.
- 4 Enter this passcode again when prompted to confirm the passcode for this user.
  - **Note:** Every time you switch users, Dolphin Mobile prompts you to enter a user name and password, even if a passcode is set up for that user.

## Adding a Server after Logging in

You can access the server menus after logging in to Dolphin Mobile if you want to add a new server, delete, or edit an existing server.



- 3 Follow the instructions in "Adding, Deleting and Editing Servers" on page 20.
- 4 Touch the My Ocean Server 

  to return to the

to return to the main menu.

## **Passwords and Passcodes**

Dolphin Mobile requires you to set a passcode when you first login to the application so you don't have to enter your Dolphin user name and password every time you connect to the Dolphin server. You only need to set up a passcode once for each user.

Passcodes apply to the last user logged in only. If another user logs in to the same device, and then you log in, Dolphin Mobile will prompt you to enter your full user name and password. You can also change your Dolphin desktop password from Dolphin Mobile at any time.

To set a passcode:

1 After logging in for the first time, the following screen appears:



2 Touch the buttons on the keypad to define your passcode.

Dolphin Mobile prompts you to enter your passcode again:



3 Touch the buttons on the keypad to enter your passcode.

### **Updating Your Passcode**

If your Dolphin password has changed since you last logged in to Dolphin Mobile, and you have a Dolphin Mobile passcode, you need to update the passcode on your mobile device. You will be prompted for your full user name and password in this case.

| 1 | From th       | e home screen, touch the 📃 button   |  |
|---|---------------|-------------------------------------|--|
| 2 | Touch t       | he Settings option.                 |  |
| 3 | Touch         | Edit Passcode<br>Edit your passcode | , and then set your passcode as described in |
|   | <u>"Passw</u> | ords and Passcodes" on page 23.     |  |

## **Changing Your Password**

You can change your Dolphin password directly from Dolphin Mobile. You can also configure Dolphin Mobile to remind you to update your Dolphin password, when it is about to expire.

| 1 | From the home screen, touch the | ≡ | button. |
|---|---------------------------------|---|---------|
|   |                                 |   |         |

2 Touch the **Settings** option.



3 Touch Expires :2/24/2018

- 4 On the Change Password screen, enter your old password, your new password, and reenter your new password.
- 5 Touch OK.

Your new Dolphin password is saved; be sure to enter this password the next time you log into any of the Dolphin desktop products.

| E Settings > Chang | e Password            |
|--------------------|-----------------------|
| User: admin        |                       |
| Old Password       |                       |
| New Password       |                       |
| Reenter New Pas    | sword                 |
|                    | a subscription of the |

## **Fingerprint Login**

To log in to Dolphin Mobile with a fingerprint instead of a passcode, you must first scan and register your fingerprint on your mobile device.

1 Log in to Dolphin Mobile.

The app recognizes that a fingerprint is stored, and it prompts you with the Confirm message box.

2 Touch **YES** to allow fingerprint login.

The next time you log into Dolphin Mobile, an animated fingerprint appears in the lower left corner of the passcode screen.



- 3 Do one of the following depending upon the device type you are using:
  - On a device running iOS, touch the animated finger print to open a dialog box asking for your fingerprint.
  - On a device running Android, touch the fingerprint scanner on your phone.

## **Enabling or Disabling Biometrics**

You can enable or disable biometrics while you have a fingerprint stored on your mobile device (both Android and iOS) and facial recognition (for <u>Virtual Braces</u> feature) set up on your iOS device.

To enable biometrics on Dolphin Mobile:

- 1 From the home screen, touch the **E** button.
- 2 Touch the **Biometrics** toggle button to turn biometrics features on or off.

| Biometrics                                |  |
|---|--|
| Toggles of the use of biometrics to login |  |

## Menu Overview

Dolphin Mobile provides different ways to access the various screens and menus. This section describes some of these screens and menus and how you navigate to them.

### Home

The home screen, shown below is what you see after you log in to Dolphin Mobile. The options that appear there may vary depending upon the Dolphin product or products for which you are licensed:



From the home menu you can navigate to other areas of the app, as shown, and you can touch the **settings** to navigate to the home settings menu, where you can customize and reorder the options that appear on the home menu. See <u>"Reorganizing the Home Menu" on page 98</u> for more information.

### Main Menu

You can access the main menu by touching the from the home screen or other screens. The options that appear on the main menu vary depending upon the Dolphin product or products for which you are licensed:



Swipe up or down to scroll through the options on the main menu.

Some features, such as Questionnaire can be accessed from the home screen, the main menu or from a patient screen.

From any screen or menu in the program, you can always touch the is to access the main menu from which you can navigate to another area of the program, get help about the program, or log out of Dolphin Mobile.

### **Settings Menu**

You access the main app settings by touching Settings on the main menu.

|  | @ # @ ♥ ⊿ 76% # 1      | 0:20 PM |                  |
|--|------------------------|---------|------------------|
|  |                        |         |                  |
| Image Capture  |                        |         |                  |
| Image Size   | Large                  | _       |                  |
| Image Quali  | ty<br>Better           |         | Swipe the scroll |
| General  |                        |         | rest of the      |
| Phone Num  | ber Prefix             | 0       | Settings menu.   |
| Show Listed  | I Servers              |         |                  |
| Clear Cache  | of your current server |         |                  |
| Edit Passco  | de                     |         |                  |
| Edit your passood  |                        |         |                  |
| Same and the second sec | That LOP               |         |                  |

# Using Dolphin Mobile if You Have Dolphin Imaging Only

This section describes how to use Dolphin Mobile to access and view data from your Dolphin Imaging server.

**Note:** Dolphin Mobile displays patient images and ceph tracings for convenient reference. However, patient diagnosis and treatment decisions should be made using only the full Dolphin Imaging software on a desktop computer.

To open Dolphin Mobile:

- 1 On your mobile device, touch the Dolphin Mobile icon.
- 2 When prompted, enter your Dolphin Mobile passcode or user name and password if you do not have a passcode.

The Dolphin Mobile home page opens.



From here you can view patient, doctor, or billing party information, questionnaires, capture signatures or view Aquarium media, if you also have Dolphin Aquarium installed.

## **View Patient Information**

To view patient information from Dolphin Imaging:

1 Touch the **Patients** search box.

The following screen opens:



- 2 Touch the letters on the keypad to enter the name of the patient you want to view.
- 3 Touch the search button on the keypad.

Dolphin Mobile displays a list of names that match what you entered on the keypad. If you have accessed other patient data previously, a list of most recently viewed patients is displayed:

4 Touch the name of the patient whose information you want to view.

The patient information screen opens:
| <u> </u> |                          | ⓒ 🕯 🖬 😤 ⊿ 29                                    | 9% 🛢 11:3 | 8 AM |
|----------|--------------------------|---|-----------|------|
| ≡ :      | Search > P               | atient  |           |      |
|          |                          |   |           |      |
|          | Jai                      | ime Dolatowski<br>4/24/1976<br>41 yrs 9 mos old |           |      |
|          | $\mathbf{\underline{r}}$ |   | L         |      |
| Billin   | g Parties                | and Relationships                               |           | >    |
| Treat    | tment Car                | d   |           | >    |
| Profe    | essionals                | and Referrals                                   |           | >    |
| Supe     | r Questio                | nnaire  |           | >    |
|          |                          |   |           | >    |

**Note:** If you are in a multi-specialty practice, the patient information screen will have tabs for each specialty. These tabs appear just above the patient image.



- 5 If you searched using the first few letters of a patient's last name, you can swipe left or swipe right to go to the previous or next patient meeting that search criteria.
- 6 Touch the envelope, messaging, or phone icons to email, send a text message, or call this patient.
- 7 To view more demographic information, touch and drag the
- 8 To view more information about billing parties and relationships this patient has with other entries in your database:
  - a Touch Billing Parties and Relationships>.

The following screen opens:



b Touch the name of the person for whom you want to view more information:



- c Touch the envelope, messaging, or phone icons to email, send a text message, or call this billing party.
- d To view more demographic information about this person, touch the
- e To return to the Patient screen, touch the previous menu item until you get to >Patient, or if you are using an Android device, touch the Back button on your mobile device until you get to the Patient screen.
- 9 On the Patient screen, touch the **Professionals and Referrals** button.

The next screen shows who referred this patient to your office, who you have referred this patient to, if he/she needed to be referred out, who the patient has referred to your office, and what other medical professionals are associated with this patient.

| 808svtt000                       | ♥ # 60% # 1:19 PM |
|----------------------------------|-------------------|
| Search > Patient > Profs         | & Refs            |
| PROFESSIONALS                    |                   |
| Dan Norris<br>Pediatrician       |                   |
| Peter Packman<br>General Dentist |                   |
| REFERRED BY                      |                   |
| Dina Dolphin                     |                   |
| Web Site                         |                   |
| Peter Packman<br>General Dentist |                   |
| WE REFERRED                      |                   |
| Michael Beck<br>Oral Surgeon     |                   |
| REFERRED TO US                   |                   |
| Dustin Dolphin                   |                   |

10 To return to the Patient screen, touch Patient>, or touch the Back button if you are using an Android device.

## **View Billing Party Information**

To view billing party information from Dolphin Mobile:

- 1 From the Dolphin Mobile home menu, touch the **Billing Parties** search box.
- 2 When the **Search Billing Parties** search screen opens, touch the letters on the keypad to enter the name of the billing party.
- 3 Touch the search button.
- 4 If more than one billing party is listed on the next screen, touch the name of the billing party whose information you want to view.
- 5 Touch the envelope, messaging, or phone icons to email, send a text message, or call this billing party.
- 6 To view more demographic information about this person, touch and drag the
- 7 If you searched using the first few letters of a doctor's last name, you can swipe left or swipe right to go to the previous or next doctor meeting that search criteria.
- 8 Touch the envelope, messaging, or phone icons to email, send a text message, or call this doctor.
- 9 To view more demographic information about this doctor, touch and drag the

### **Treatment Card**

To access treatment card information for this patient:

1 From the Patient screen touch the **Treatment Card>** text.

The following screen opens, which shows the ten most recent entries:

| 🔳 Sea      | arch | > Pati  | ent > Tr   | eatmo      | ent Card 🛛 🌣                   |
|------------|------|---------|------------|------------|--------------------------------|
|            |      | Saman   | tha (San   | n) Jon     | es                             |
| Default T  | reat | ment Ca | ard Layo   | ut - Or    | tho 🗸                          |
| Add C      | omn  | nent    |            |            | All                            |
| Date       | ε    | ASST    | PROC       | DR         | т                              |
| 12/25/2010 | С    | CALLE   | FROM CO    | NFIRMA     | TION LIST FOR 1/5, LM          |
| 12/30/2010 | v    | 17      | 60         |            | BOI                            |
| 1/27/2011  | v    | 23      | 63 65      | 1          | EVAL UPPER WIRE CI<br>WANTS TO |
| 3/9/2011   | ٧    | TR      | Wire       |            | Wi                             |
| 7/9/2011   | ٧    | TR      | wire       | DM         | Wi                             |
| 11/13/2011 | ۷    | VR      | PROG       | DI         | i                              |
| 12/21/2011 | ٧    | тм      | wire       |            | No wire c                      |
| 2/21/2012  | E    |         |            |            |                                |
| 2/23/2012  | С    | Aquariu | im "AAO Te | st Playlis | t" Playlist started from       |
| 2/21/2012  | N    | TR      | wire       | 12 200     |                                |

- 2 Touch the down arrow to view a different treatment card layout.
- 3 Swipe the screen to view the remaining columns and/or entries on the treatment card.
  - **Note:** If you do not see all of the treatment card fields you expect, it is because Dolphin Mobile does not display all fields automatically. This enables you to specify which fields you want to see on your mobile device. See "Dolphin Management Treatment Card Settings" on page 100.

To view the tooth chart for this patient:

1 Swipe the screen until you see if there is a tooth chart icon on the patient's treatment card, for example:

| ۵                                 |                 | @ * @              | ?⊿                      | 34%          | 1:53     | РМ         |  |
|-----------------------------------|-----------------|--------------------|-------------------------|--------------|----------|------------|--|
| Search > Patient > Treatment Card |                 |                    |                         |              |          |            |  |
|                                   | Samar           | ntha (Sam          | ) Jone                  | s            |          |            |  |
| Default Treat                     | ment C          | ard Layou          | t - Ort                 | ho           | 1        | <b>~</b> ] |  |
| Add Com                           | Add Comment All |                    |                         |              |          |            |  |
| NVT                               | wĸs             | Chart              | Elas-<br>tics           | UAW          | LAW      | TA         |  |
|                                   |                 | Ŵ                  |                         |              |          |            |  |
|                                   |                 | 1                  |                         |              |          |            |  |
| Touch the                         | <u>.</u>        |                    |                         |              |          |            |  |
| ©                                 | ient Ca         | € ¥ 🗑<br>ard > Too | িয়া বিদিয়া<br>হিনামান | 34% 🛙<br>art | 1:53     | PM         |  |
| All Charted It                    | ems             |                    |                         |              | 2        | ~          |  |
|                                   |                 |                    |                         |              |          |            |  |
|                                   |                 |                    |                         |              |          |            |  |
|                                   | 11              |                    | 11                      | ì ù          | <u>.</u> |            |  |
| MANI                              | 11              | iii                | 11                      | 11           |          |            |  |

- 3 Optional: Touch the it to change the view of charted items. (All Charted Items is selected by default.)
- 4 Pinch to zoom in or zoom out.

2

5 To return to the Patient screen, touch **Patient >**.

To customize the width of columns on the treatment card:

1 From the Treatment Card screen, touch 🔯.

The Settings screen opens.



2 Touch Customize Columns.

If you have more than layout on this patient's treatment card, Dolphin Mobile prompts you to select a layout.

3 Select the layout.

The Edit Width screen opens:



- 4 Touch the v to open a list of treatment card columns you can resize.
- 5 Touch the column you want to resize. (on the screen above, it is the Arch Wire Upper (Arch U) column.
- 6 Touch and drag the **\_\_\_\_** until the column shown in the Preview is set to the desired width.

- 7 Repeat the previous 3 steps for each column you want to resize.
- 8 Touch Settings> to exit the Edit Width screen.

To revert to the previous column width settings:

- 1 On the Settings screen touch Clear Cache.
- 2 Touch OK on the message box to clear the custom column width settings for all treatment card layouts.
- 3 Touch **Treatment Card >** to return to the patient's treatment card screen.
- 4 To return to the Patient screen, touch Patient >

# **Using Questionnaire**

You can view, edit, have patients fill out and sign questionnaires from your mobile device.

- 1 To access a questionnaire, do one of the following:
  - From the Dolphin Mobile main screen, or from any screen where the button is visible:
    - f Touch
    - g From the displayed list, touch **Questionnaire**.

Any patients you had previously viewed are displayed on the Search screen.

- h Select a patient for whom you want to view a questionnaire.
- From the Patient screen:
  - a Touch Super Questionnaire.
- From the home screen:
  - a Touch Questionnaire.

A list of available questionnaires is displayed.



- 2 Touch the questionnaire you want to view.
- 3 Choose a language style (Layman Adult, Clinical, Layman, or Dentist) when prompted.
- 4 Choose a time point when prompted.

| Patient:   |      |         |    |     |      |     |
|------------|------|---------|----|-----|------|-----|
| Jones,     | Sam  | antha   |    |     | -    | ×C  |
| Questionr  | aire |         |    |     |      |     |
| AAO - Infe | orme | d Conse | nt |     |      | - 3 |
| Language   | Styl | e:      |    |     |      |     |
| Layman A   | dult |         |    |     |      |     |
| Timepoint  | t    |         |    |     |      |     |
| 3/23/12 -  | Prog | ress    |    |     |      | - 3 |
| Mode:      | ۲    | Staff   | 0  | Pat | ient |     |
| Questions  | Per  | Page:   |    |     |      |     |
| 0          | 1    | • 3     | 0  | 5   | 0    | 10  |

- 5 From the Questionnaire screen touch the **Staff** or **Patient** radio buttons to specify the viewing mode.
- 6 Touch the radio button corresponding to how many questions per page you want to view at a time.
- 7 Touch Load Questionnaire

The following screen shows a sample Extraction Request questionnaire in staff mode, with 10 questions per page:

| lease complete the Questionnaire.      |  |
|--|--|
| xtraction Request                      |  |
| xtractions                             |  |
| Extract upper first permolars: 5, 12   |  |
| Extract upper second permolars: 4, 13  |  |
| Extract lower first premolars: 21, 28  |  |
| Extract lower second premolars: 20, 29 |  |
| Extract upper third molars             |  |
| Extract lower third molars             |  |
| Early extraction of primary teeth:     |  |
| Extract upper second molars: 2, 15     |  |
| Extract one incisor: ()                |  |
| Serial extraction procedures           |  |

8 Complete the questionnaire on the mobile device.



- 10 At any time you can touch to save the questionnaire and complete it at another time.
- 11 Touch **b** to sign the questionnaire.
- 12 Select the signing party when prompted.
- 13 When finished, touch Submit.

Once the questionnaire has been submitted, it will open in read-only mode.

If you are a patient filling out the questionnaire, Dolphin Mobile returns to the Enter a Passcode screen after you click **Submit**.

If you are office staff completing a questionnaire, you are returned to the Questionnaire screen after you click **Submit**.

## **View Patient Imaging Data**

You can view patient imaging data from Dolphin Mobile as described below.

**Note:** Dolphin Mobile displays patient images and ceph tracings for convenient reference. However, patient diagnosis and treatment decisions should be made using only the full Dolphin Imaging software on a desktop computer.

To view patient images from Dolphin Mobile:

- 1 Access the Patient screen as described in "View Patient Information" on page 30.
- 2 Touch the patient image.

The following screen opens:

| ۵0   | @ # @ ♥ ∡ 31% 🖬 12           | 26 PM  |
|--|------------------------------|--------|
| E Search   | n > Patient > Patient Images | ÷      |
| 2/12/2002  | - Initial                    | $\sim$ |
| <all images<="" td=""><td>Þ</td><td>~</td></all> | Þ                            | ~      |
|  |                              |        |
|  | anter taken                  | 3      |
| States and                                       |                              | P)     |
|  |                              |        |
|  |                              |        |

- 3 From this screen, touch the first down arrow to select a different timepoint (defaults to most recent).
- 4 Touch the second down arrow to view a menu of different image layout options. (The example below shows the Compare Progress layout.)



- 5 Drag with a single touch to pan left and right to see more images, if necessary.
- 6 Tap on any image to see it in more detail:



- 7 Swipe left or swipe right to view the next and previous images respectively.
- 8 Double-tap an image to zoom in on a specific area; then use multi-pinch zooming.
- 9 Drag one finger across the screen to pan a zoomed image.
- 10 Double-tap the image again to exit the zoom function and return to a normal view of the selected image.
- 11 Press the Android Back button again to return to the layout view. On iOS, press the Done button at the top left corner.

## **Superimpose Patient Images**

Use the Superimpose menu to view patient images in a side-by-side layout, which enables you to compare images from different time points and view an image with an overlay:

From the Patient screen, touch Superimpose. 1 Or

From the Patient Images screen touch , and then touch **Superimpose**.

The Superimpose layout opens in a side-by-side view.



Optional: To change the time point, touch the <u>v</u> to open the Choose a Timepoint screen, where 2 you can touch the time point to which you want to change. Or,

Swipe left or right to navigate between timepoints.

3 Touch the image you want to view.

The image you selected opens on the side of the screen where you selected it.

4 Touch an image on the other side to overlay it over the first image you selected. 5 Touch Pan/Zoom so you can switch from one active image to another.

In the screen shot below, a dark blue line around the image, and around the image icon indicates the active image.

- 6 Touch one of the image icons to make it the active image.
- 7 Touch and drag to pan and scale the active image to position the overlay.

You change the active image at any time but touching the icon associated with the image you want to pan and scale.

8 Touch and drag the — to change the opacity of the overlay.



9 Touch the Section of the side-by-side layout.

### **Share Image Layouts**

You can create, save, and print image layouts directly from Dolphin Mobile. Once the a JPEG file of the image layout is saved, save the file, share it with a contact, or print it directly from Dolphin Mobile, if your mobile device is set up for printing.

To save and share an image layout:

1 From the Patient Images screen, select any layout image except <All Images>.

2 Touch , and then touch Share Layout Image.

A message is displayed while Dolphin Mobile builds a vertical JPEG of the image. You can now use the sharing options on your mobile device.

### **View Ceph Tracing and Measurements**

If any of the images on the main Patient Images screen has this icon attached to it ( 11 ), it means ceph tracing is available for that image.

To view Ceph Tracing:

- 1 Touch the image with the ceph tracing icon.
- 2 When the image opens, you can zoom in, zoom out, and pan.

If the icon appears on the image, you view a list of patient measurements.

To view patient measurements:

1 Touch the 🛄 .

The following screen shots show a zoomed-in ceph tracing and a list of measurements:



| Carrier 😤                                 | 10:33  | M          |        | -           |
|---|--------|------------|--------|-------------|
| Tracing >                                 | Measu  | ireme      | nts    |             |
| Group/<br>Measurements                    | Norm   | Std<br>Dev | Value  | Dev<br>Norm |
| SNA (*)                                   | 82.00  | 3.50       | 80.71  | -0.37       |
| SNB (*)                                   | 80.90  | 3.40       | 75.46  | -1.60 *     |
| ANB (*)                                   | 1.60   | 1.50       | 5.25   | 2.43 **     |
| Facial Plane to SN<br>(SN-NPog) (*)       | 80.00  | 4.00       | 75.25  | -1.19 *     |
| Y-Axis (SGn-SN) (*)                       | 67.00  | 5.50       | 72.25  | 0.95        |
| MP - SN (*)                               | 33.00  | 6.00       | 42.92  | 1.65 *      |
| Occ Plane to SN (*)                       | 14.40  | 2.50       | 19.71  | 2.13 **     |
| Occ Plane to A-B<br>(*)                   | 88.90  | 4.00       | 87.00  | -0.47       |
| U1 - Occ Plane (*)                        | 57.00  | 7.00       | 60.21  | 0.46        |
| U1 - NA (°)                               | 22.80  | 5.70       | 19.36  | -0.60       |
| U1 - SN (*)                               | 102.70 | 5.50       | 100.07 | -0.48       |
| U-Incisor<br>Protrusion (U1-<br>APo) (mm) | 6.00   | 2.20       | 37.78  | 14.45       |
| U1 - NA (mm)                              | 4.30   | 2.70       | 19.23  | 5.53        |
| L1 - NB (mm)                              | 4.00   | 1.80       | 38.32  | 19.07       |
| 11 - SN (9)                               | 57.50  | 8.50       | 39.67  | -2.10       |

# Using Dolphin Mobile if You Have Dolphin Management

This section describes how to use Dolphin Mobile to access and view data from Dolphin Management.

- 1 On your mobile device, touch the Dolphin Mobile icon.
- 2 When prompted, enter your Dolphin Mobile passcode.

The Dolphin Mobile screen opens.



### Set up and Use Patient Sign-in

Patients can now sign in to your practice using Dolphin Mobile running on a tablet or smart phone, and staff can also sign-in patients using a mobile device.

You must first set up this feature in Dolphin Management as described below:

- 1 From the Edit menu, select **Practice-->Locations**.
- 2 If you have more than one practice location, select the location for which you want to configure patient sign-in.

The Edit a Location dialog box opens.

- 3 Click the Options button.
- 4 On the Sign-in tab, Sign-in entry method field, select one of the following:
  - Keyboard Only (Patients key in their names.)
  - Patient List (to show a list of appointments)

Both methods also provide the option for patient badge scan-in as well.



The other fields on the Sign-in and Messages tabs are where you set the background color, and font sizes, and they are described in the Dolphin Management online help and Dolphin Management User's Guide.

- 5 Log into the mobile device that your practice wants to use for patient sign-in.
- 6 From the home screen, touch the **button** to access the main menu.
- 7 On the main menu, touch Patient Sign-in.
  - **Note:** If you are not using a tablet, you may see a Warning message. Touch **OK** on this message. While the patient sign-in feature works best on a tablet, we support it on mobile phones as well.
- 8 Choose a location, if prompted to do so.

- 9 Choose the sign-in mode:
  - Kiosk for patients to sign themselves in.
    - a Touch OK.

Patient sign-in is set up and ready to use. If your device has a forward-facing camera and it is running Dolphin Mobile v7 and above, it will scan the patient's badge or QR code shown in Dolphin MyOrthodontist. If your device does not have a forward-facing camera, patients simply use their MyOrthodontist scanner to scan the QR code shown on the sign-in screen.

- **Staff** for staff to sign in patients.
  - a Touch OK.

A list of patients, their date of birth and appointment time is displayed on the mobile device.

- b Touch the name of the patient you want to sign-in.
- c When prompted, touch **Confirm** to sign in the patient to your practice.

### **View Patient Information**

To view patient information from Dolphin Management:

1 Touch the Patients search box.

The following screen opens:



- 2 Touch the letters on the keypad to enter the name of the patient you want to view.
- 3 Touch the search button.

Dolphin Mobile displays a list of names that match what you entered on the keypad:

4 Touch the name of the patient whose information you want to view.

The patient information screen opens:

| Search > Patie                                 | int              |                        |
|--|------------------|------------------------|
|  | Active Full Phas | ie i                   |
|  | Start date       | 12/20/2016             |
|  | Treat months     | 12/21/2017<br>(12 mos) |
| Samantha (Sam)                                 | Deband date      | 2/20/2018              |
| Jones<br>2/27/1498<br>22 prs 10 mos old Femala | Location         | Chatsworth             |
| 10 : 970992                                    | <u> </u>         | 1                      |
| Appointments                                   |                  | >                      |
| Billing Parties and                            | Relationships    | >                      |
| Patient Balance Su                             | mmary            | >                      |
| Treatment Card                                 |                  | >                      |
| Comments                                       |                  | >                      |
| Professionals and                              | Referrals        | >                      |
| Super Questionnair                             | re               | >                      |

From the Patient screen you can access:

- If you also have Dolphin Imaging installed, images of this patient, including side-by-side layout, ceph tracing, measurements, and image superimposition
  - **Note:** Dolphin Mobile displays patient images and ceph tracings for convenient reference. However, patient diagnosis and treatment decisions should be made using only the full Dolphin Imaging software on a desktop computer.
- Demographic information
- Appointment history for this patient
- Billing party and relationship information
- Balance summary
- Treatment Card information
- Comments
- Professionals and referrals
- Super Questionnaires
- Documents

From any Patient, Billing Party, or Doctor screen, you can touch the envelope, messaging, or phone icons to email, send a text message, or call this person.

Additionally, if you are running Dolphin Management 10.6, and your practice is licensed for MyOrthodontist and/or Premium 2-Way SMS, you can touch the paper airplane icon to open the SMS Messaging Center. For more information see "SMS Messaging Center" on page 70.

To view images of this patient, touch the patient image shown, and follow the directions in <u>"View Patient Imaging Data" on page 40</u>.

To view this patient's appointment history and information:

1 Touch the **Appointments** text:

The Appointments screen opens:

|                      | e o C | 9 🖬 🖬 🕇         | * | iment | 4 73% | 10:12 AM  |
|----------------------|-------|-----------------|---|-------|-------|-----------|
| Date/Time            | Min   | Type            | L | 0     | A     | Status    |
| 4/18/12<br>8:00 AM   | 85    | BOND            | с | DM    |       | Scheduled |
| 4/13/12<br>7:30 AM   | 30    | NPA             | С | DM    |       | Scheduled |
| 4/11/12<br>8:00 AM   | 20    | NPC             | С | DM    |       | Scheduled |
| 3/30/12<br>8:25 AM   | 30    | NPA             | С | DM    |       | Scheduled |
| 2/15/12<br>4:30 PM   | 30    | ADJUST30        | с | DM    | VR    | Dismissed |
| 2/14/12<br>4:10 PM   | 20    | ADJUST20        | с | DM    | KLV   | Dismissed |
| 2/14/12<br>9:00 AM   | 30    | ADJUST30        | с | DM    | VR    | Dismissed |
| 2/8/12 8:00<br>AM    | 120   | DEBAN-<br>DAPPT | с | DM    | BB    | Dismissed |
| 2/2/12 9:30<br>AM    | 20    | DBCK            | С | DM    | VR    | Dismissed |
| 1/26/12<br>4:30 PM   | 30    | ADJUST30        | с | DM    | WD    | Dismissed |
| 1/16/12<br>4:30 PM   | 30    | ADJUST30        | с | DM    | PL    | Dismissed |
| 12/20/11<br>3:15 PM  | 25    | IMPR            | с | DM    |       | Dismissed |
| 11/29/11<br>1:25 PM  | 15    | ADJ             | с | DM    |       | Dismissed |
| 11/21/11<br>5:00 PM  | 15    | NPC             | с | DM    |       | Dismissed |
| 11/8/11<br>3:20 PM   | 30    | NPC             | С | DM    |       | Dismissed |
| 10/12/11<br>2:40 PM  | 20    | IMPR            | с | DM    |       | Dismissed |
| 10/11/11<br>12:45 PM | 15    | ADJ             | с | DM    |       | Dismissed |

- 2 To return to the Patient screen, touch **Patient>**, or touch the Back button if you are using an Android device.
- 3 To view more demographic information about this person, touch and drag the

To view information about billing parties and relationships this patient has with other entries in your database:

1 From the Patient screen touch **Billing Parties and Relationships**.

The following screen opens:



2 Touch the person for whom you want to view more information. (In the example below, the billing party was selected.



3 Touch the envelope, messaging, or phone icons to email, send a text message, or call this billing party.

- 4 To view more demographic information about this person, touch and drag the
- 5 To view a balance summary for this billing party, touch the **Balance Summary** text.

The following screen opens:

|                              |                | * @ DI 55% I | 1:53 PN |  |  |
|------------------------------|----------------|--------------|---------|--|--|
| Billing Part                 | y > Balance Su | ummary       |         |  |  |
|                              | Patient        | Ins          | Total   |  |  |
| Current w/o<br>Credits       | \$0.00         | \$0.00       | \$0.00  |  |  |
| Credits                      | \$0.00         | 40.00        | \$0.00  |  |  |
| Current w/<br>Credits        | \$0.00         | \$0.00       | \$0.00  |  |  |
| Over 30                      | \$0.00         | \$0.00       | \$0.00  |  |  |
| Over 60                      | \$0.00         | 40.00        | \$0.00  |  |  |
| Over 90                      | \$0.00         | \$0.00       | \$0.00  |  |  |
| Total Due                    | \$0.00         | \$0.00       | \$0.00  |  |  |
| Total Past Due               | \$0.00         | \$0.00       | \$0.00  |  |  |
| Unbilled Balance             | \$0.00         | \$0.00       | \$0.00  |  |  |
| Account Balance              | \$0.00         | \$0.00       | \$0.00  |  |  |
| Total Contracts/<br>Benefits | \$0.00         | \$0.00       | \$0.00  |  |  |

6 To return to the Patient screen, touch **Billing Party >** and then touch the patient image icon in the right-hand corner of the Billing Party screen, or touch the Back button if you are using Android until you get to the Patient screen.

To view a balance summary for this patient:

1 From the Patient screen, touch **Patient Balance Summary**.

The following screen opens:

|                              | 1000   |        |        |  |  |
|------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--|--|
| Current w/o<br>Credits       | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0,00 |  |  |
| Credits                      | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |  |  |
| Current w/<br>Credits        | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |  |  |
| Over 30                      | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |  |  |
| Over 60                      | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |  |  |
| Over 90                      | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |  |  |
| Total Due                    | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |  |  |
| Total Past Due               | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |  |  |
| Unbilled Balance             | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |  |  |
| Account Balance              | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |  |  |
| Total Contracts/<br>Benefits | \$0.00 | \$0.00 | \$0.00 |  |  |

2 To return to the Patient screen, touch **Patient >** or touch the Back button if you are using Android until you get to the Patient screen.

### **Treatment Card**

To access treatment card information for this patient:

1 From the Patient screen touch the **Treatment Card>** text.

The following screen opens, which shows the ten most recent entries:

| 🔳 Sea      | arch | > Pati  | ent > Tr  | eatmo      | ent Card 🛛 🌣                   |
|------------|------|---------|-----------|------------|--------------------------------|
|            |      | Saman   | tha (San  | n) Jon     | es                             |
| Default T  | reat | ment Ca | ard Layo  | ut - Or    | tho 🗸                          |
| Add C      | omn  | nent    |           |            | All                            |
| Date       | Ε    | ASST    | PROC      | DR         | т                              |
| 12/25/2010 | С    | CALLE   | FROM CO   | NFIRMA     | TION LIST FOR 1/5, LM          |
| 12/30/2010 | v    | 17      | 60        |            | BOI                            |
| 1/27/2011  | v    | 23      | 63 65     | 1          | EVAL UPPER WIRE CI<br>WANTS TO |
| 3/9/2011   | v    | TR      | Wire      |            | Wi                             |
| 7/9/2011   | ٧    | TR      | wire      | DM         | Wi                             |
| 11/13/2011 | ۷    | VR      | PROG      | DI         | I                              |
| 12/21/2011 | ٧    | тм      | wire      |            | No wire c                      |
| 2/21/2012  | E    |         |           |            |                                |
| 2/23/2012  | С    | Aquariu | m "AAO Te | st Playlis | t" Playlist started from       |
| 2/21/2012  | N    | TR      | wire      |            |                                |

- 2 Touch the down arrow to view a different treatment card layout.
- 3 Swipe the screen to view the remaining columns and/or entries on the treatment card.
  - **Note:** If you do not see all of the treatment card fields you expect, it is because Dolphin Mobile does not display all fields automatically. This enables you to specify which fields you want to see on your mobile device. See "Dolphin Management Treatment Card Settings" on page 100.

To view the tooth chart for this patient:

1 Swipe the screen until you see if there is a tooth chart icon on the patient's treatment card, for example:

| ۵             |                | • * •               | ?⊿              | 34%                 | 1:53  | PM |
|---------------|----------------|---------------------|-----------------|---------------------|-------|----|
| E Searcl      | h > Pati       | ent > Tre           | atme            | nt Car              | d 1   | ۵  |
|               | Samar          | ntha (Sam           | ) Jone          | s                   |       |    |
| Default Treat | tment C        | ard Layou           | t - Ort         | ho                  | i i i | ~) |
| Add Com       | ment           |                     |                 | 2)                  | All   |    |
| NVT           | wĸs            | Chart               | Elas-<br>tics   | UAW                 | LAW   | TA |
|               |                |                     |                 |                     |       |    |
|               |                | <b>1</b>            |                 |                     |       |    |
|               |                |                     |                 |                     |       |    |
|               |                |                     |                 |                     |       |    |
| Touch the     | ₯              |                     |                 |                     |       |    |
| Touch the     | <u>.</u>       | <b>⊙ * ⊠</b>        | ≈⊿              | 34% 🛙               | 1:53  | PM |
| Touch the     | nent Ca        | ⓒ<br>🖬 🕑 😧          | হু 🖌<br>th Cha  | 34% 🛙<br>art        | 1:53  | PM |
| Touch the     | nent Ca        | ④ * 12<br>ard > Too | হু ∡া<br>th Cha | 34% <b>1</b><br>art | 1:53  | PM |
| Touch the     | nent Ca        | ⊙ ∦ ≌<br>ard > Too  | হু ⊿<br>th Cha  | 34% <b>1</b><br>art | 1:53  | PM |
| Touch the     | nent Ca        | ⊙ * 🖬<br>ard > Too  | হু ⊿<br>th Cha  | 34% 🛙               | 1:53  | РМ |
| Touch the     | nent Ca        | ④ ∦ ≌<br>ard > Too  | হু ∡া<br>th Cha | 34% <b>2</b><br>art | 1:53  | PM |
| Touch the     | nent Ca        | ④ ≹ ≌<br>ard > Too  | হু 🔎            | 34% <b>a</b><br>art | 1:53  | PM |
| Touch the     | nent Ca<br>ems | € * ¤               | ₹⊿<br>th Cha    | 34% <b>a</b><br>art | 1:53  | PM |
| Touch the     | nent Ca        | € * ¤               | ♥ ▲             | 34% <b>a</b> rt     | 1:53  | PM |

- 3 Optional: Touch the it to change the view of charted items. (All Charted Items is selected by default.)
- 4 Pinch to zoom in or zoom out.

2

5 To return to the Patient screen, touch **Patient >**.

To customize the width of columns on the treatment card:

1 From the Treatment Card screen, touch 🔯.

The Settings screen opens.



2 Touch Customize Columns.

If you have more than layout on this patient's treatment card, Dolphin Mobile prompts you to select a layout.

3 Select the layout.

The Edit Width screen opens:



- 4 Touch the v to open a list of treatment card columns you can resize.
- 5 Touch the column you want to resize. (on the screen above, it is the Arch Wire Upper (Arch U) column.
- 6 Touch and drag the **\_\_\_\_** until the column shown in the Preview is set to the desired width.

- 7 Repeat the previous 3 steps for each column you want to resize.
- 8 Touch **Settings>** to exit the Edit Width screen.

To revert to the previous column width settings:

- 1 On the Settings screen touch Clear Cache.
- 2 Touch OK on the message box to clear the custom column width settings for all treatment card layouts.
- 3 Touch **Treatment Card >** to return to the patient's treatment card screen.
- 4 To return to the Patient screen, touch Patient >

### Comments

You can add, edit, and delete comments associated with any patient record in Dolphin Management.

To add a patient comment:

1 From the Patient screen touch the **Comments>** text.

If the patient record you are viewing has comments, you can view those comments here. If there are no comments, the text Add comment here appears in the text box.



3 On the Add Comment screen, touch the **Y** to select the comment type.

The comment types you can choose from correspond to the comment types available to you in Dolphin Management:



- 4 Touch the radio button next to the comment type you want to add.
- 5 Touch v to select whether this comment applies to one or all billing parties associated with this patient.
- 6 If you are running Dolphin Management with the Specialty Module installed, touch view to select the specialty to which the comment applies.
- 7 Touch Add comment here to open the mobile device keyboard.
- 8 Enter the comment text.



9 Touch

to save the comment.

#### **Professionals and Referrals**

To view referral information for this patient:

1 Touch Professionals and Referrals.

The next screen shows who referred this patient to your office, who you have referred this patient to, if he/she needed to be referred out, who the patient has referred to your office, and what other medical professionals are associated with this patient.



#### **Documents**

You can view and sign documents associated with any patient, doctor, or billing party, and you can add documents from your mobile device directly to a person's record in Dolphin Management.

To view documents associated with this person:

1 On the Patient, Doctor, or Billing Party screen, touch the **Documents** button.



2 On the Documents screen touch a folder to open it.

The example below shows the documents that are stored in a folder called Letters.



3 Touch the document you want to view.

You may see a message while the document you selected is downloaded to your mobile device.

Before the document opens, your mobile device may prompt you to select a program for viewing the document.

The following example shows a letter opened with a PDF viewer:

|   | Dol   | phin  | Contraction of the second seco  |  |  |
|---|---|---|---|--|--|
| August 7, 2008  |   |   |   |  |  |
| Ellen Jones<br>60 East Faid Ave 39C<br>Chateworth, CA 91311<br>Dear Ellen |   |   | 00  |  |  |
|   |   |   | had a   |  |  |
| RE.   | Samentha's orthodose  | ic constantion  |   |  |  |
| Dest  | The,  |   |   |  |  |
| Was .   | are very happy to each<br>your company for the  | ome you and famantha to nor practice. We are excited to<br>most few years.  | · ···   |  |  |
| The other follow  | latter is a review of a<br>eductic consultation a<br>wing   | dageous and treatment plan we decremed at our secont<br>prominent. As you are aware, the dageous included the   | 5   |  |  |
| 1   | Chief Concerns<br>Chevillection   | Underfore<br>The lower back both bits too for behind the upper and  | opper incidents   |  |  |
| 1   | Overlide<br>Overjet   | tip annurds.<br>The wateral overlap of the front such is overseries (over<br>The upper incises are mediatedly too far in front of the   | tao<br>lawar  |  |  |
| -   | Crowling  | inverted)<br>The apper teeth are crowded due to assufficient space  |   |  |  |
| 104   | completing and crait  | nating Nam's daugacein, I developed the plan for her, earlie  | has outlined below  |  |  |
| •   | Treatment Plan  | Comprehensive orthodoxtic treatment to address all the<br>problems  | and   |  |  |
| 21 11111  | logat active trained<br>how anyong toth and-<br>anisments. They the<br>interest to a planned<br>aroby.<br>die Gothedettet | It has a sequenciatedly models with up to 2-year total<br>equilibrium chan, meaning had or Area (A. and Kangy<br>Arthur areas any querieus year any have equeding with<br>Arthur areas any querieus year any have equeding with<br>a set and hard its and an exa up time. It has how a p i<br>relationship in the finance, as well as an excellent small? | ton investment aller the how<br>a Kanasaka's concentration,<br>gall her articulantic<br>darks investment. These are<br>answer modified, with you and  |  |  |
|   | GD  | olphin  | rid Headquarters<br>Sea for form<br>Headquarters<br>Based for<br>Based for<br>Bas |  |  |
|   |   |   |   |  |  |

#### **Share Documents**

To add a document or photo from your mobile device to a person's record in Dolphin Management:

- 1 On the Patient, Doctor, or Billing Party screen, touch the **Documents** button.
- 2 Touch the

A screen opens on your mobile device from where you can browse to the documents or images you want to add to Dolphin Management.

3 Touch the document or image you want to add.

The Share screen opens.

| × Share   | <b>.</b>             | >                   |
|-----------|----------------------|---------------------|
| IMG Resiz | zedImage_1461055753  | 15681.j 🔽           |
| Touch the | icon to send the sel | ected file to the p |

Touch the **Left** icon to send the selected file to the person's documents folder in Dolphin Management.

#### **Sign Documents**

4

Office staff as well as patients and billing parties (when they are in your office) can sign documents using Dolphin Mobile. When you open a document for signature, you can choose whether it should be signed in Patient Mode (shown below) or Staff Mode.

| ô  | Patient Mode   | DONE  |
|----|--|-------|
|    | t ३ 🚺 of 1 − +   | »     |
| Γ  |  |       |
|    | March 14, 3019   |       |
|    | Regarding: Volumery Termination of Transmeric for Califor Alliny   |       |
|    | The signed form is introduct to contrib that L on parents or guardian of Cattle Abbey, respect and<br>downed the sensorial of orthodoxiat application and the terminetics of continuest. | I     |
|    | There have informed that tractioned has out yet how completed and that Dr. Delphin resonanced the continuation of tractioned in order to obtain the laser reads.                         |       |
|    | 828 <sup></sup>  |       |
|    | I being ofess Dr. Delpha from any responsibility for all conseparates count by Califord<br>transmet lang transmet queue the arbits of the articularity.                                  |       |
|    | and the  |       |
|    |  |       |
|    | Post's of Charlies's Spanies Date  |       |
|    | View Date  |       |
|    |  |       |
|    |  |       |
|    | Di Doğlar Dav  |       |
|    |  |       |
|    |  |       |
|    |  | ×     |
|    | al an  | 100   |
|    |  | Clear |
|    |  |       |
|    |  |       |
| 10 |  |       |
|    |  |       |
| ~  | Sign Here  |       |
|    | Destant  |       |
|    | Patient  |       |

- 1 From Dolphin Management, add any of the tokens used for signature capture to a document that requires a signature.
- 2 Save this document in the patient's Dolphin Document Organizer.

3 Open the patient record in Dolphin Mobile, and touch Documents.

When you open a document requiring a signature, the signature icon appears



4 Touch the icon to open the signature box.

Dolphin Mobile prompts you to select whether staff or a patient will be signing the document:



- 5 Touch the radio button corresponding to the signature mode you want to use.
- 6 Touch OK.
- 7 Use your finger to sign above the signature line.
- 8 You can view the signature in the preview window, and clear and sign again if necessary.

| Staff Mode  | DONE  |
|---|-------|
| 🔲 🖈 🧎 1 of 1 - +  | »     |
|   |       |
|   |       |
| March 14, 2019  |       |
| Repeting: Unitatory Termination of Doctoors for Carlin Abley  |       |
| Data supports terms in allocations to consult that is, an particular data strategies and<br>domained the consult of strategiesing applications and the transmoother of the constrane.<br>It have been indicated that travestated has not yet here completed and that Dis. Onlykits seconstrated<br>the constraints of travestates in loss that the result.  |       |
| interior<br>1 keeping solvane (in. Delphin from any requestibility for all consequences caused by Cultici<br>Locations between trans and provide the advance of the advance of the cultication of the solution of |       |
| and an  |       |
| Peren er Southen Signitur Den   |       |
| Witten Das  |       |
| Dr. Svann Dav   |       |
|   |       |
|   | ×     |
|   |       |
| 11000   | Clear |
| an  |       |
| <u> </u>  |       |
| Sign Here   |       |
| Patient   |       |

9 Once you are satisfied with the signature(s), touch the document.



to save the signed copy of the

### **View Doctor Information**

To view doctor information from Dolphin Mobile:

- 1 Touch the **Doctors** search box.
- 2 On the Doctor Search screen, touch the letters on the keypad to enter the name of the doctor you want to view.
- 3 Press the Search button on the keypad.

Dolphin Mobile displays a list of names that match what you entered on the keypad

4 If more than one doctor is listed on the next screen, touch the name of the doctor whose information you want to view.

The Doctor screen opens:

| Search > Doctor         | j.   |
|-------------------------|--|
| Peter (Phil)<br>Packman | Starts Last 12<br>Mos \$0.00   Starts All Time \$251,700.00   Payments (\$152,128.85)   Charges \$174,149.07 |
| <b></b>                 | <u>ه</u> ر   |
| STATISTICS              |  |
| Unbilled Contracts      | \$35,900.00  |
| Unbilled Benefits       | \$3,587.50   |
| Patient Total Due       | \$15,023.70  |
| Ins Total Due           | \$845.00   |
| Unstarted Treatments    | \$37,200.00  |
| Doctor Info             |  |
| Notes:                  |  |
| Good Referral           |  |

The Statistics section shows a summary of billing information for all patients this doctor has referred into the practice.

The Doctor Info section shows information about this doctor stored on the Dolphin Management Edit a Doctor, Doctor tab, such as his or her practice name, spouse name and any notes you may have added to this record in Dolphin Management.

- 5 If you searched using the first few letters of a doctor's last name, you can swipe left or swipe right to go to the previous or next doctor meeting that search criteria.
- 6 Touch the envelope, messaging, or phone icons to email, send a text message, or call this doctor.
- 7 To view more demographic information about this person, touch and drag the
- 8 To a list of patients this doctor referred in to your office, touch the Referred In text.
- 9 To view which patients this doctor referred out of your office, touch the **Referred Out** text.
- 10 Touch the **Relationships** text to view relationships this doctor has with other entities in your database.
- 11 To view or add documents associated with this doctor touch the **Documents** text.
- 12 To view history about this doctor, touch the History text.
- 13 To view contacts associated with this doctor, touch the Contacts text.

## **View Billing Party Information**

To view billing party information from Dolphin Mobile:

- 1 From the home screen, touch **Billing Parties** 
  - Or

from any screen, touch the E button, and

button, and then touch **Billing Parties** from the displayed menu.

When the Search screen opens, touch the letters on the keypad to enter the name of the billing party.

- 2 Touch the search button.
- 3 If more than one billing party is listed on the next screen, touch the name of the billing party whose information you want to view.

The Billing Party screen opens:

|  | Dolphin, Dina                                |
|--|--|
| 10 m   | Blankenbecler, Lilly                         |
| Melinda Dolphin  | O Patient                                    |
| 7/21/73<br>42 yrs 10 mos eld   |  |
|  | - L  |
|  |  |
| BALANCE SUMMARY  |  |
| BALANCE SUMMARY<br>Total Due   | \$407.00                                     |
| BALANCE SUMMARY<br>Total Due<br>Total Current Due                                      | \$407.00<br>\$0.00 >                         |
| BALANCE SUMMARY<br>Total Due<br>Total Current Due<br>Total Past Due                    | \$407.00<br>\$0.00 ><br>\$407.00             |
| BALANCE SUMMARY<br>Total Due<br>Total Current Due<br>Total Past Due<br>Account Balance | \$407.00<br>\$0.00 ><br>\$407.00<br>\$407.00 |

Relationships this person has with other entities in Dolphin Management are shown in the upper right corner of the screen.

- 4 Touch any of the entities listed to see more information about that person.
- 5 If you searched using the first few letters of the billing party's last name, you can swipe left or swipe right to go to the previous or next billing party meeting that search criteria.
- 6 Touch the envelope, messaging, or phone icons to email, send a text message, or call this person.
- 7 To view more demographic information about this person, touch and drag the
- 8 To view a balance summary for this billing party, touch in the **BALANCE SUMMARY** box.

The following screen opens:

|                              | Patient    | Ins        | Total      |
|------------------------------|------------|------------|------------|
| Current w/o<br>Credits       | \$0.00     | \$0.00     | \$0.00     |
| Credits                      | \$0.00     | \$0.00     | \$0.00     |
| Current w/<br>Credits        | \$0.00     | \$0.00     | \$0.00     |
| Over 30                      | \$0.00     | \$0.00     | \$0.00     |
| Over 60                      | \$0.00     | \$0.00     | \$0.00     |
| Over 90                      | \$565.65   | \$880.00   | \$1,445.65 |
| Total Due                    | \$565.65   | \$880.00   | \$1,445.65 |
| Total Past Due               | \$565.65   | \$880.00   | \$1,445.65 |
| Unbilled Balance             | \$1,400.00 | \$2,297.50 | \$3,697.50 |
| Account Balance              | \$1,965.65 | \$3,177.50 | \$5,143.15 |
| Total Contracts/<br>Benefits | \$0.00     | \$0.00     | \$0.00     |

- 9 Touch Billing Party > to return to the Billing Party screen.
- 10 To view documents associated with this billing party, from the Billing Party screen, touch **Documents**.

### **Search and Schedule an Appointment**

The schedule feature in Dolphin Mobile is synchronized with Dolphin Management. You can search for and schedule appointments, and the Management calender will update automatically.

To search for and schedule an appointment from Dolphin Mobile:

From the home screen, touch

Or

1

Schedule

From the Main menu, touch Schedule.

The following screen opens:



- 2 Tap the button.
- 3 The Search Patients screen opens.
- 4 Enter the first few letters of the patient's name to bring up a list of patients.
- 5 Touch the patient whose appointment you want to schedule.

The Search screen opens. This screen provides the same options available on the Dolphin Management Search Schedule-->Search Options tab:
| Searc  | h By:                         |
|--------|-------------------------------|
| ۲      | Appt Type O Appt Class        |
| Type:  | ADJUST20                      |
| locat  | ion: Chatsworth 🗸 🗸           |
| Provid | der: Dr. Dolphin 🗸 🗸          |
| Minut  | es: 20                        |
| Date I | Range:                        |
|        | 3 / 17 / 2020 . 4 / 16 / 2020 |
|        | Ise Patient Preferred Options |
| Week   | days:                         |
| 50     | MON THE WED THU FRE SAT       |
| AM/P   | M:                            |
|        | A.M. PM.                      |
|        | A.M. P.M.                     |

6 Touch and key in the desired search criteria.

At a minimum, you must specify an appointment type/class and a location

7 Touch Search.

The Open Reservations list opens. You can page up or down the list to find the desired appointment.

8 Touch the appointment you want to schedule.

The following screen opens on your device:



- 9 Optional: Enter any notes you want to associate with this appointment.
- 10 Tap **OK**.

#### Navigate the Schedule

This section describes how to navigate the schedule for viewing purposes.

- 1 From the main Schedule screen, you can:
  - Touch the < or > to go to the previous or next month, respectively.
  - Swipe right or left to go to the next or previous month, respectively.
  - Swipe up or down to go the next or previous year, respectively.
  - Touch **Tomorrow** to go to tomorrow.
  - Touch **Today** to go to today's date.
  - Touch any day to go to the schedule for that day

Once you select a day, the appointment List for that day opens:



2 Optional: Touch **Summary** to view a summary of appointments for that day, sorted by appointment type:

| ≣ s  | chedule > Day (5 appts)  | G      |
|------|--------------------------|--------|
|      | Tuesday, March 17, 2     | 2020 > |
| Lis  | t Summary                |        |
| ADJ  | Adjustment               | 8      |
| IMPR | Impression for Retainers | 9      |
| NPA  | New Patient Exam - Adult | 10     |
| NPC  | New Patient Exam - Child | 30     |
| BOND | Bonding                  | 4      |

3 Optional: Touch **Notes** to view any notes for that day:



- 4 To return to the List screen, Touch List, or swipe the screen with your finger.
- 5 To return to the calendar view, touch **Schedule >** or press the Back button (if you have an Android device) to get there.
- 6 From the Summary screen, touch any appointment type to view a list of all appointments of that type scheduled for this day:



Total Appointments: 2

7 To change the appointment type you are viewing, touch anywhere on the appointment type title bar.



8 Touch the radio button associated with the appointment type you want to view.

#### **SMS Messaging Center**

You can access the Dolphin Management SMS Messaging Center from Dolphin Mobile from the either the main menu, or from any entity (patient, doctor, billing party, etc.) for whom an SMS number is provided. SMS numbers are specified in Dolphin Management when you add or edit a phone number for an entity, via the Phone Number dialog box:

| Name:        | Dolphin, Robert |
|--------------|-----------------|
| Phone Number | (213) 343-1234  |
| Phone Type:  | ~               |
| Note:        | ^               |
|              |                 |
|              | Use for SMS     |

To access the SMS Messaging Center:

1 From the main menu, touch Messaging Center Or

From the first page of any entity record, touch the



When you access the messaging center from an entity, it opens in context so you can immediately begin typing an outgoing message to that entity:

| 🗙 🌄 Danilow, Nina - B | ILL |
|-----------------------|-----|
| <b>v</b>              |     |
|                       |     |
|                       |     |
| Text Message          | 4   |

When you open the messaging center from the main menu, it opens on the Inbox screen.

Touch the to access the same mail boxes you have set up in the desktop version:

а



b Touch Send Message to open the Search Entities screen, where Patient is selected by default.

| 12:12 🕶 🛓 🛓       | 10 🗢 🕄 л 45% 🕹 |
|-------------------|----------------|
| X Search Entities | $\rightarrow$  |
| Patient           | ~              |
| Search            | Q              |

- c Touch the down arrow to open Choose Entity Type, and touch to choose from Patient, Billing Party, Doctor, or Employee.
- d Touch and enter information in the Search box until the desired entity is displayed.
- e Touch 🔶 .
- 2 Enter the message text, and touch the

to send it.

## **Light Bar**

You can view the Light Bar and move patients from one light bar status to another, specify how many columns you want to view, and what information you want to see for each patient.

When Dolphin Mobile is on the same Wifi as the office, the Light Bar will update in real time. If the device running Dolphin Mobile is out of the office, it updates once per minute, unless the app is running in the background, so it does not use up resources on the mobile device.

To view the Light Bar:

1 From the main menu, touch Light Bar.

To change a patient's lighting system status:

- 1 Open the Light Bar.
- 2 Touch the rectangle corresponding to the patient whose status you want to change.

The Update screen opens. The patient's current status is outlined in black. In the screen shot below, the selected patient is in Assistant Treating status.



Touch the colored bar corresponding to the status to which you want to move the patient.
 The Light Bar updates on Dolphin Mobile and on Dolphin Management to reflect this change.

To set Light Bar options:

- 1 Open the Light Bar.
- 2 Touch the 🚺 button.

The Settings screen opens:

| Number of Columns for Light Bar                       |   |
|---|---|
| • 1 0 2   |   |
| Show the Priority as Background                       |   |
| Show the Scheduled Minutes Remaining<br>as Background |   |
| Show Appointment Type Code                            | 4 |
| Show Appointment Type Color                           |   |
| Show Patient ID                                       |   |
| Show Patient Name                                     | 2 |
| Show Assistant Initials                               |   |
| Show Timers   | ~ |
|   |   |
|   |   |
| Save  |   |

The settings above are a subset of the options you can access in Management by right-clicking on the Light-Bar, and selecting Light Bar Options from the pop-up menu.

## **Patient GPS**

Providing you have Dolphin Management 10.6 installed, you can access Patient GPS features from Dolphin Mobile. Patient GPS honors the color settings configured in Dolphin Management.

When Dolphin Mobile is on the same Wifi as the office, Patient GPS will update in real time. If the device running Dolphin Mobile is out of the office, it updates once per minute, unless the app is running in the background, so it does not use up resources on the mobile device.

To access Patient GPS:

- 1 From the home screen, tap = to open the main menu.
- 2 On the main menu, tap **Patient GPS**.



To use Patient GPS:

1 Swipe the status bar to view a list of patients in each status.

You can see:

- 0 sign-in times
- how long they have been waiting 0
- how many minutes they were early or late, 0
- the time they entered the status. 0

## **Care Call**

The Care Call feature in Dolphin Management allows doctor or staff to assign follow-up calls for doctors to make after completing a deband or other procedure requiring extra care. Doctors can then access this information on their mobile device, add notes, and even close these calls after office hours.

When you assign a care call from Dolphin Management, that care call is added to the treatment card notes.

To use Care Call:

1



The following screen opens:

| Status     |   | 0          | pen | •      |
|------------|---|------------|-----|--------|
| Date Range |   | Cust       | om  | •      |
| 10/11/2021 | • | 10/11/2021 | ٩   |        |
| Employee   |   |            | ALL | •      |
| Jones, Sa  | m | antha      | 10/ | 11/202 |

- 2 Touch each down arrow to filter the calls you view based on the date range or call status or the employee who was assigned to make the call.
- 3 Touch the patient name to view his or her care call.

The patient's Call screen opens:

| 6                                    | Samantha | a (Sam) Jones |
|--------------------------------------|----------|---------------|
|                                      | Closed   |               |
| Samantha Joi<br>(810,000,000<br>Cell | hes      |               |
| Notes                                | Ado      | d Timestamp   |
| Reminder                             |          |               |
| C                                    | ose Call | Save Cancel   |

4 From this screen you can do any of the following:

- Touch the patient image to view more detailed patient information.
- Touch the Last visit button to view information about this patient's last visit.
- Touch the **Tx Card** button to view this patient's treatment card.
- Tap the patient's name and number to view a list of phone numbers for patient family members and other professionals associated with this patient.

If you are using a device enabled to make calls, you can touch any of the numbers to make a call or add this number to your device's contact list.

| 1  | Sam                   | antha (Sam | ) Jones  |
|----|-----------------------|------------|----------|
|    | Dute .                | 1          | /11/2018 |
|    | hoose a Phone         | Number     |          |
|    | Family                |            |          |
|    | G (818) 8             | 07-0981    |          |
|    | (818) 8               | 07-0981    |          |
| 00 | (818) 5<br>Elles Jose | 55-1212    | _1       |
| Ľ  | Doctors<br>(818) 5    | 55-1212    | - 1      |

- Touch the 🛃 to access your device's text messaging feature.
- Add a time stamp to the Notes box.
- $\circ$  Touch the  $\checkmark$  button to open the message center for this patient.

**Note:** This feature requires Dolphin Management 10.6 to be installed and your practice to be licensed for MyOrthodontist and 2-way SMS messaging. For more information on the messaging center, see the Dolphin Management User's Guide or online help.

- Close the care call
- 5 Touch the **Save** button to save the care call.

Once you close the care call, a treatment card entry is automatically added indicating that you closed a care call.

## **Using Questionnaire**

You can view, edit, have patients fill out, and sign questionnaires from your mobile device.

To access a questionnaire:

1 From the home screen touch **Questionnaire** Or From the main menu, touch **Questionnaire**.

Any patients you had previously viewed are displayed on the Search screen.

2 Select a patient for whom you want to view a questionnaire.

A list of available questionnaires is displayed.



- 3 Touch the questionnaire you want to view.
- 4 Choose a language style (Layman Adult, Chief Concern, Clinical, Layman, or Dentist) when prompted.
- 5 Choose a time point when prompted.

78



- 6 From the Questionnaire screen touch the **Staff** or **Patient** radio buttons to specify the viewing mode.
- 7 Touch the radio button corresponding to how many questions per page you want to view at a time.
- 8 Touch Load Questionnaire

The following screen shows a sample Extraction Request questionnaire in staff mode, with 10 questions per page:

| Please complete the Questionnaire.<br>Extraction Request |   |
|--|---|
|  |   |
| Extractions  |   |
| Extract upper first permolars: 5, 12                     |   |
| Extract upper second permolars: 4, 13                    |   |
| Extract lower first premolars: 21, 28                    |   |
| Extract lower second premolars: 20, 29                   |   |
| Extract upper third molars                               |   |
| Extract lower third molars                               |   |
| Early extraction of primary teeth:                       |   |
| Extract upper second molars: 2, 15                       | C |
| Extract one incisor: ()                                  |   |
| Serial extraction procedures                             |   |

- 9 Complete the questionnaire on the mobile device.
- 10 Touch it is sign the questionnaire.Dolphin Mobile prompts you to choose a signing party.
- 11 Touch the name of the person who will be signing the questionnaire.

The Signing Party screen opens:



- 12 Optional: touch is to open the Note screen where you can tap, and enter any notes you want to associate with this signed questionnaire.
- 13 Touch **OK** to save your notes.
- 14 When finished, touch Submit.

Once the questionnaire has been submitted, it will open in read-only mode.

If you are a patient filling out the questionnaire, after you touch **Submit** the following message is displayed:



After the patient touches **OK**, Dolphin Mobile returns to the Enter a Passcode screen.

Office staff enter their passcode, and Dolphin Mobile returns to the questionnaire screen in staff mode for signature and submittal.

## **Using Treatment Card Image Capture**

The capture feature integrates with the Treatment Card field, Images (non-Dolphin Imaging). You can capture images from Dolphin Mobile (like hygiene) and easily transfer those images to the Dolphin Management, treatment card, Image (non-Dolphin Imaging) field.

Before using the capture feature, you must set up the Images (non-Dolphin Imaging) field in treatment card.

1 From Dolphin Management, select Edit → Treatment → Treatment Card Setup, and add the Images (non-Dolphin Imaging) field to each layout to which you want to add captured images from Dolphin Mobile.

To use Capture:

1 From the home screen, touch **Tx Card Image Capture**, Or,

from any Dolphin Mobile screen touch **E**, and from the displayed list, touch **Tx Card Image Capture**.

2 If your server has multiple locations, select the location if prompted.

The device camera opens.

- 3 Take the picture.
- 4 Touch **OK** to save the image to your Dolphin server.

The image is saved.

To add the captured images to a patient's treatment card:

- 1 In Dolphin Management, open the treatment card for the patient.
- 2 On the visit or emergency entry, click the image icon in the Images (non-Dolphin Imaging) column.

The Entity Images dialog box opens.

- 3 Click the Add from Mobile button.
- 4 On the Add from Dolphin Mobile screen, click to select the image.
- 5 Click OK.

The Entity Images screen opens where you can edit the image, before saving it in the patient's treatment card.

| Date Range:        | Today               | ~      |  |
|--------------------|---------------------|--------|--|
| Location:          | Chatsworth          | $\sim$ |  |
| Employee:          | Administrator, Adam | ~      |  |
| mages              |                     |        |  |
| □ <u> </u>         |                     |        |  |
| 201602181003       | 20160218141455      |        |  |
| 2/10/16 11:4<br>AM | 2/10/10 3:04 PM     |        |  |

The image or images you just captured are displayed in the Images group box.

6 Optional, filter the list using any combination of the following:

| Date Range | Date the image was captured (defaults to today)  |
|------------|--|
| Location   | The location selected when the image was captured (defaults to logged-in location)               |
| Employee   | The employee logged in to Dolphin Mobile who captured the image (defaults to logged-in employee) |

7 Click to check the box next to the image or images you want to add to the patient's treatment card.

Images open in the Entry Images dialog box, where you can edit them if necessary.

8 Click OK.

The selected images are attached to the treatment card entry, and an icon with a number indicates how many images are there.



#### **Capture Signature**

You can use Dolphin Mobile to capture signatures for:

- Employees
- Patients and employees signing Super Questionnaires
- Signing merged letters using the **Sign** tool bar button in the Dolphin Letter System (DLS) integration with Microsoft Word

To set up Dolphin Mobile as a signature scanner:

1 In Dolphin Management, select **Plug ins** from the **Edit->General** menu.

The Plug-Ins Configuration dialog box appears:

- 2 In the Plus-In Types group box, select **Signature Scanner**.
- 3 Click Add .
- 4 Select Dolphin Mobile Signature Capture.
- 5 Click OK.

To capture a new signature using Dolphin Mobile:

| Oolphin Mo        | bile Signature Capture                              | 3         | × |
|-------------------|---|-----------|---|
| Bryan Dolphin     |   |           |   |
| Capture Device:   | KatGalaxy S9 - Last login 2/23/2018 by Adam Dolphin |           | ~ |
| -Captured Signati | ure   | OK Cancel |   |

- 1 On the Dolphin Mobile Signature Capture dialog box, ensure that the device you want to use is listed in the Capture Device drop-down menu.
- 2 From Dolphin Mobile, access the Capture Signature screen.
- 3 Sign, or have the person sign on the signature line.
- 4 Touch the **Submit** button.

The new signature appears in the Captured Signature box in Dolphin Management.

5 Click, **OK** to add the new signature to the Signature list box of the entity you are editing.

You can capture staff signatures and have them become part of the employee record in Dolphin.

1 From the Dolphin Mobile main menu, touch **Capture Signature**.

| ≅ F | 🖻 🕑 🕸 🗢 📶 85% 🖩 9:35 AM |
|-----|-------------------------|
| ≡   | Capture Signature       |
|     |                         |
|     |                         |
|     |                         |
| x   |                         |
|     | Sign Here               |
|     | Submit Close            |
|     |                         |
|     |                         |
|     |                         |
|     |                         |

- 2 Sign, or have the logged-in staff member sign.
- 3 Touch Submit.

The employee record in Dolphin is updated with this signature.

# Call, Text, Email, or Capture an Image of an Entity

This chapter describes how you can call, text, or email an entity in your database, or capture an image of an entity in your database. This chapter applies to both Dolphin Imaging and Dolphin Management installations.

#### **Call a Patient, Doctor or Billing Party**

If you are running Dolphin Mobile on a mobile device that supports calling, you can call the patient, doctor or billing party from their respective screens.

To call a patient, doctor, or billing party:

1 From the Patient, Doctor or Billing Party screen, touch the **V** button.

The standard dialing screen is displayed, and the default phone number for that patient, doctor, or billing party is automatically dialed.

#### **Text a Patient, Doctor or Billing Party**

If you are running Dolphin Mobile on a mobile device that supports texting, you can text the patient, doctor or billing party from their respective screens.

To text a patient, doctor, or billing party:

.....

1 From the Patient, Doctor or Billing Party screen, touch the **Form** button.

The standard texting screen is displayed, and the default phone number for that patient, doctor, or billing party is automatically entered.

#### **Send Email**

Dolphin Mobile allows you to email a patient, doctor or billing party from their respective screen.

To email a patient, doctor, or billing party:

1 From the Patient, Doctor or Billing Party screen, touch the

button.

to add one.

The standard mobile device email screen is displayed, with the patient, doctor, or billing party's email address already completed.

- 2 Enter text for the subject and body of the message.
- 3 Touch the **Send** button.

#### **Capture Patient Images**

To capture an image of a patient (if you have Dolphin Imaging):

- 1 Navigate to the patient whose image you want to capture
- 2 Touch the image icon to open the Patient Images screen.
- 3 Touch the camera icon.

The Timepoint screen opens.

- 4 Do one of the following:
  - $\sim$  If no timepoints exist for this patient, touch the  $\diagdown$ 
    - a On the New Timepoint screen, touch the timepoint or enter a new one.
    - b Optional: touch the Calendar icon if you want to select a different date to associate with this timepoint.
    - c Touch V to save the timepoint, which returns you to the Timepoint screen.
    - d Touch the  $\rightarrow$  to open the Capturing screen.
  - If one or more timepoints exist, touch the one you want to use, and then touch the 🔁 to open the Capturing screen. t



- 5 Touch the Image tab, and select the Image type (Facial Front, for example).
- 6 Touch the camera icon again to open the camera on your mobile device.
- 7 Optional: If you want to use grid lines to make taking the picture easier, touch the **1**, and select from one of the following:
  - No Grid (the default)
  - o 3x3 Grid
  - 4x4 Grid
  - Golden Ratio Grid
- 8 Touch the shutter button on your device to take the picture.

You can now touch **OK** to save the image, and upload it to Dolphin Imaging when prompted, or you can modify the image as described in Modify Patient Images below.

#### **Modify Patient Images**

Once you take a picture, Dolphin Mobile provides several tools for editing it before you upload it to Dolphin Imaging.



- 1 To modify a patient image, do one or more of the following:
  - Touch the Crop tool to crop the picture.
    - a When the crop lines appear, drag them to crop the picture.

- Touch the **Flip** tool to change the orientation of the image.
- Touch the Mirror tool to create a mirror images.
- Touch the Adjust tool to change the brightness, contrast, hue or saturation of the image.

The following controls appear at the bottom of the image:



- a Touch the tool you want to use.
- b Drag the slide bar until you achieve the desired result.
- c Touch the **v** to save your changes, or touch the **v** to exit the adjustment controls without saving your changes.
- 2 Touch **OK** to save the image.
- 3 Upload the image or images to Dolphin Imaging when prompted.

#### **Capture Entity Images**

If your mobile device has a camera, you can take pictures of any non-patient (doctor, billing party, etc.), save it, and upload it to the Dolphin server to which you are connected.

To capture and assign an image to a non-patient entity in your database (If you have Dolphin Management):

1 From any doctor, billing party, or non-patient screen, touch the existing default image for that person.

This opens the camera app on your device

2 Take the picture.

The camera on your mobile device should provide options to save or retake the picture. Once you are satisfied with the picture, save it, and continue with the next step.

- 3 When the Save as screen opens do one of the following:
  - Touch the **Default** button to make the new image the default image.

The default image replaces the previous default image of this person in Dolphin Mobile. If the person is a doctor or billing party, the new default image is copied to that person's record in Dolphin Management.

- Touch the **Save** button to save the image.
- Touch the **Cancel** button to cancel out of the camera app and return to the previous screen.

# Using Dolphin Mobile with Dolphin Aquarium

Dolphin Mobile provides a subset of Dolphin Aquarium features for users who have Dolphin's case presentation software installed on their server.

The instructions here apply whether you use Dolphin Aquarium only or if you have one or more other Dolphin products installed.

**Note:** Aquarium-only users may see icons for Dolphin Imaging and Dolphin Management on their mobile devices; only the Aquarium icon is active.

To access Dolphin Aquarium:

1 From the Dolphin Mobile home screen, touch **O** Aquarium Or,

From a Patient screen, touch Aquarium.

The Dolphin Aquarium main screen opens.

| ۵            | © * 🛙      | 2 23%=2: | 41 PM  |
|--------------|------------|----------|--------|
| Patient > Ac | quarium    |          | ٠      |
| MEDIA        |            |          | NT     |
| Diagnosis:   | Treat      | ment:    |        |
| <all></all>  | ✓          | L><br>ا  | $\sim$ |
| Search       |            |          | 4      |
| 2x4          |            |          | ×      |
| Hey          | 1          | the      | >      |
| 1 2 3 4      | 5 6        | 789      | 0      |
| qwer         | t y        | u i d    | o p    |
| a s d        | fgh        | jk       | I      |
| ↑ z x        | c v b      | n m      | •      |
| Sym 🌷 ,      | English(US | •        | Q      |

From the main screen you can:

- If you opened Aquarium from a patient, share Aquarium media with that patient.
- Filter which media you see by Diagnoses, Treatment, Aquarium Library or any keyword you enter in the search window.
- Play Aquarium movie clips and view stills
- Play Aquarium playlists

To share Aquarium media with a patient:

1 Touch the *i* icon to next to each movie listed that you want to share with the selected patient.

For each movie you share, the indication is replaced with in x.

- 2 To see list of movies shared with the patient, touch **PATIENT**.
- 3 To remove a movie shared with the patient touch the 🕺 next to the movie you want to remove.

When you share media with a patient, it becomes part of that patient's Shared Media library on Aquarium desktop, and any media you shared on Aquarium desktop, you can access on the that

patient's **PATIENT** page on Dolphin Mobile Aquarium. If your patient is running MyOrthodontist, he or she can also view shared Aquarium media through that mobile app.



button appears when you have added media to the patient record.

| um<br>PATIE<br>wski | NT<br>×                           |
|---------------------|-----------------------------------|
| PATIE<br>bwski      | NT<br>X                           |
| bwski               | ×                                 |
| rag and dro         |                                   |
| inag and die        | op to                             |
| ant                 | ×                                 |
|                     | ×                                 |
| wding -             | ×                                 |
| usion               | ₫                                 |
| Cancel              |                                   |
|                     | ant<br>wding -<br>usion<br>Cancel |

4 Touch to save any changes (deletions or additions) you make to the patient's Shared Media library from Dolphin Mobile.

To filter the Aquarium library by treatment or diagnosis types:

1 Touch the <all> < under Treatment or Diagnosis to show a menu by which you can filter.</a>

The following image shows the options under Diagnosis:



- 2 Touch the button corresponding to the diagnosis you want to view.
- 3 Repeat the previous steps using the **<ALL> v** under Treatment to filter Aquarium media by treatment.

To search the Aquarium library based on a keyword:

1 Touch the Search text box:



- 2 When the keypad is displayed, enter the keyword on which you want to search.
- 3 Touch the search button on the keypad to begin the search.

The following image shows what is displayed when you search on the word "spacing."

|             | ⊙ ≹∎ ♥∡  | 12% 8 4:07 P |
|-------------|--|--------------|
| MEDIA       | PLAYLIST                                       | PATIENT      |
| Diagnosis   | s: Treatme                                     | nt:          |
| <all></all> | ✓ <all></all>                                  | ×            |
| spacing     | 9  | ×jq          |
| =           | Class I Spacing                                | ්            |
| ALCON.      | Interproximal Reducti<br>Crowding (Rotary Disk | on 🖒         |
|             | Space Maintainer Uni                           | lateral 🖄    |

To filter the Aquarium library by topic:



A list of your libraries is displayed.

| ≅ F ≗⊙⊀8 ≑⊿                              | 68% 🖹 11:40 AM |
|--|----------------|
| ■ Aquarium > Settings                    |                |
| Library                                  |                |
| - Everything -                           | ۲              |
| Movies                                   | 0              |
| Stills                                   | 0              |
| Manufacturer                             | 0              |
| User                                     | 0              |
| Recently Added                           | 0              |
| Hidden                                   | 0              |
| Recently Played                          | 0              |
| Dolphin Ortho                            | Ó              |
| Dolphin Surgery                          | 0              |
| Dolphin Pediatric                        | 0              |
| General                                  |                |
| Refresh                                  |                |
| Refreshes all the videos, diagnosis, and | treatments     |

2 To select any of these libraries, simply touch the option and you will be returned to the Aquarium page with the contents of only that library displayed.

To play a movie clip or view a still:

1 Touch the thumbnail associated with the movie clip or still you want to view.

You may see a message displayed while the media you selected loads.

2 While a movie clip is playing, tap it to display the following controls:



To play a playlist of Aquarium movie clips and/or stills:

1 From the main Aquarium screen, swipe Left to go to the Playlist page.



- 2 Touch the 🔽 to select from the playlists currently on the server.
- 3 Touch the appropriate control to play the selected playlist.
- 4 While the playlist is playing, tap it to access the following controls:



# **Virtual Braces**

Virtual braces is a marketing tool you can use to show parents and patients what braces will look like on their teeth. This tool has several options, enabling you to show the patient a virtual example of what they would look like with ceramic versus metallic braces, different colors of bands; you can customize the virtual teeth by making them wider or narrower to better match the patient's actual teeth. This feature works on iPhone or iPad X and newer devices equipped with a TruthDepth camera only.

To access Virtual Braces:

2

1 From the main menu, touch Virtual Braces.

The Start screen opens.



With the iPhone camera facing the patient, tap **Stort**, and have the patient open their mouth.

From the Virtual Braces screen, you have the following options available:

• Split the screen as shown in the example below, where half the patient's face shows braces, and the other half does not.



• Tap the left and right arrows to change the split screen view.



- Tap the **to** take a picture.
- Tap **BRACES** to open options where you can toggle top braces and bottom braces on or off, select the band color, and specify metallic or ceramic braces.
- Tap **TEETH** to open the options shown below:

0



Using these options, you can modify the teeth height, width, jaw offset, jaw position, and gap by touching the white circle and sliding it until you achieve the look you want for each.

To exit the virtual braces screen:

1 Tap your finger four times on the top left of the screen.

Dolphin Mobile prompts you to enter your passcode to return to the main app screen.

# Customizing

This section describes how you can customize Dolphin Mobile, from hiding, showing, or reorganizing the options on the home menu to defining which treatment card fields you want displayed on the mobile app, and how to enable and customize patient sign-in features (Dolphin Management only).

#### **Reorganizing the Home Menu**

To hide, show, or simply reorder the options on the home menu:

1 From the home menu touch Or

From the main menu, touch Settings, and then touch Customize Home.

A screen opens that shows all of the available home menu options for Dolphin Mobile. Those options with a check mark display in the home menu.

- 2 Touch to check or uncheck the menu item you want to show or hide.
- 3 Touch and hold an option until a box appears around it, then drag and drop it to reorder.
- 4 Repeat the previous step for each menu option you want to move.
- 5 Touch Save to save your changes, or Close to exit this screen without saving your changes.

#### **Dolphin Mobile Settings Menu**

The Dolphin Mobile Settings menu is where you specify global settings for the application. Some of these apply to login options, such as biometrics, and passcodes, and others control application behavior such as logout timeouts, and automatic capitalization.

To access the Settings menu:

| 1 | From the I | nome menu, or any other menu touch |  |
|---|------------|------------------------------------|--|
| 2 | Tap 🌣      | Settings                           |  |
|   | Image \$   | Size                               |  |

Large

| Image Quality<br>Better  | Use the green slider to increase or decrease the image quality.   |
|--|---|
| Logout Timeout<br>5 minutes  | Use the green slider to change the<br>number of inactive minutes after which<br>Dolphin Mobile will log you out.  |
| Phone Number Prefix  | Specify a phone number prefix, and toggle on or off.  |
| Show Listed Servers  | For practices with multiple servers,<br>toggle on to show a list of available<br>servers when Dolphin Mobile is<br>launched.  |
| Push Notifications   | Toggle to enable or disable push notifications.   |
| Enable/Disable Push Notifications  |   |
| Disable Clipboard Prevents use of Clipboard while using Dolphin Mobile     | Turn this option on to prevent users<br>from copying and pasting contents<br>inside writeable fields. Use this option<br>when patients are entering information<br>on the mobile device while in your office. |
| Auto Capitalization  | Turn this option on if you want Dolphin<br>Mobile to automatically capitalize the<br>first letter when you enter text, and after<br>a period, question mark, etc.   |
| Clear Cache  | Tap to clear the cache of the current server.   |
| Clears the cache of your current server                                    |   |
| Edit Passcode  | Tap to edit the passcode you use.   |
|  |   |
| Biometrics   | Toggle biometric login on or off.   |
|  |   |
| Customize Home<br>Select which options you want to show on the home screen | Tap to open a menu where you can<br>customize the options you see on the<br>home menu. See "Reorganizing the<br>Home Menu" on page 98.  |

Change Password Expires :2/24/2018 Change the password you use to log in to both the desktop and mobile versions of Dolphin.

#### **Dolphin Management Treatment Card Settings**

Dolphin Management users can control which treatment card fields are displayed on Dolphin Mobile. Not all treatment card fields are displayed in Dolphin Mobile by default, so you can customize which ones you want to see on your mobile device.

From a workstation running Dolphin Management:

- 1 From the Edit menu, select Treatment->Treatment Card Setup.
- 2 On the Layouts tab, select a layout, and click the Edit button.
- 3 On the Treatment Card Layout dialog box, select the field you want to be visible in Dolphin Mobile.
- 4 Click the Edit button.
- 5 On the Treatment Card Field dialog box, click the Field tab, if it is not already open.
- 6 Check the box next to Show this field in Dolphin Mobile.

| Treatme      | nt Card Field   | ×  |
|--------------|---|----|
| Field Look   | up Items Permissions  |    |
| Code:        | TX Notes  |    |
| Description: | Treatment Notes   |    |
| Width:       | 284   |    |
| Field Type:  | Text ~  |    |
|              | Continue previous entry until changed                                 |    |
|              | Entry required on Visit and Emergency entries                         |    |
|              | This is the "Remarks" field   |    |
|              | Underline spelling errors while editing text in this field            |    |
|              | Copy appointment type descriptions to this field when currently blank |    |
|              | Show this field in Dolphin Mobile                                     |    |
|              |   |    |
|              |   |    |
|              | OK Canc   | el |

7 Repeat steps 3 through 6 for each field you want to be visible in Dolphin Mobile.

100